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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

Form 10-K

M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 0-26906

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 22-3388607
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer)
incorporation or organization Identification No.
210 Sylvan Avenue, Englewoo 07632 )
Cliffs, NJ (Zip Code

(Address of principal executive offices)

Issuer’s telephone number, including area code: (A) 567-5648
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Exchange Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Exchange Act:

Common Stock, par value $.01 per share
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edB#turities
Act Yes O No M

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the
Act Yes O No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantfi(@dl all reports required to be filed by Sectiaghdr 15(d) of the
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such fileggiirements for the past 90 days. Yds No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ($@mt2229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not betained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledgeefinitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by referendeart 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment tasthbrm 10-K.O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer or a non-accelerated f8ee definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRile 12b-2 of the Exchange Act

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated filer Non-accelerated fileEd

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Aates O No
o}

The aggregate market value of voting and nonvatorgmon equity held by non-affiliates of the registrwas
approximately $456,419,000, as of the last busidagf the registrant’'s most recently completezbed fiscal quarter.

As of December 26, 2007, the registrant had 13]%Bshares of Common Stock issued and outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

The information called for by Part Ill of this Forh®-K is incorporated by reference from the Compaiyoxy
Statement to be filed with the Commission on oobeflanuary 28, 2008.
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Caution Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaimrd-looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%rward{ooking statements typically are identified by w$éerms
such as “may”, “will”, “should”, “plan”, “expect”;anticipate”, “estimate”, and similar words, alttlghusome
forward-looking statements are expressed diffeyeRtbrward looking statements represent our judgmegarding
future events, but we can give no assurance tlehtjsdgments will prove to be correct. Such statgsare subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause acasailts to differ materially from those projectedsuch forward-
looking statements. Certain factors which couldemally affect our results and our future perforrmamre
described below under “Risk Factors” and “Critiéalcounting Policies” in “ltem 7. Management’s Dission and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems. “ Forward-looking statements are inhereutigertain as
they are based on current expectations and assummoncerning future events and are subject teenous known
and unknown risks and uncertainties. We cautionnaiuo place undue reliance on these forward-logki
statements, which are only predictions and spegkamof the date of this report. Except as reguirg law, we
undertake no obligation to update or publicly amremurevisions to any forward-looking statementseftect future
events or developments. Unless the context othemeiguires, the terms “we”, “us”, “the Company”,“our” as
used herein refer to Asta Funding, Inc. and ouslidries.
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Part |

Iltem 1. Business.
Overview

The Company acquires, manages, collects and semp@&folios of consumer receivables for its owncamt.
These portfolios generally consist of one or mdrthe following types of consumer receivables:

» charged-off receivables — accounts that have be#tenoff by the originators and may have been
previously serviced by collection agenci

« semi-performing receivables — accounts where thtatés currently making partial or irregular molyth
payments, but the accounts may have been w-off by the originators; an

 performing receivables — accounts where the dabtaraking regular monthly payments that may or may
not have been delinquent in the p

We acquire these consumer receivable portfoli@ssignificant discount to the total amounts acyuaied by
the debtors. We acquire these portfolios afterait@tive and quantitative analysis of the underdyieceivables ar
calculate the purchase price so that our estinzsh flow offers us an adequate return on our invest after
servicing expenses. After purchasing a portfolie,agtively monitor its performance and review adlist our
collection and servicing strategies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from creditors and otheosigh privately negotiated direct sales, brokered
transactions and auctions in which sellers of red#es seek bids from several pre-qualified debthpasers. These
receivables consist primarily of MasterCard(R),a(R), private label credit card accounts, and tateaunication
charge-offs, among other types of receivables. Weuyge new acquisitions of consumer receivable plars from
originators of consumer debt, on an ongoing basaugh:

« our relationships with industry participants, cotlen agencies, investors and our financing sou
« brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; ant

« other sources

Our objective is to maximize our return on investina acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assult,
before acquiring a portfolio, we analyze the pditfeo determine how to best maximize collectionsicost
efficient manner and decide whether to use ourmaleservicing and collection department, thirdtpaollection
agencies and attorneys, or a combination of adletluptions.

If we elect to outsource the servicing of receieabbur management typically determines the apiatepthird-
party collection agencies and attorneys based etyfhe of receivables purchased. Once a groupcefuables is
sent to third-party collection agencies and attgsneur management actively monitors and reviewghird-party
collection agencies’ and attorneysrformance on an ongoing basis. Based on portfaiformance consideratiol
our management either will move certain receivabl@® one thirdparty collection agency or attorney to anothe
to our internal servicing department if it antidigathat this will result in an increase in coliecs or it will sell the
portfolio. Additionally, we have a collection centerhich currently employs approximately 65 staftluding
senior management and has the capacity for morelid@ employees. These employees assist us inaniogitour
third-party collection agencies and attorneys, gind us greater flexibility for servicing a percagé of our
consumer receivable portfolios in-house.

We acquire portfolios through a combination of intdly generated cash flow and bank debt. In tres, man
certain large portfolio acquisitions we have pamtdewith a large financial institution in which wbared in the
finance income generated from the collections enpirtfolios.

For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 d%] 80r finance income was approximately $138.4ioni|
$101.0 million and $69.5 million, respectively, amar net income was approximately $52.9 million5 $4million
and $31.0 million, respectively. During these samars our net cash collections were approximat28138 million,
$214.5 million and $168.9 million, respectively.
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We were formed in 1994 as an affiliate of Asta Grduacorporated, an entity owned by Arthur Stewr, o
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Vice Pregjdeary Stern, our President and Chief Executiffec€r, and
other members of the Stern family, to purchase,sahall discount to face value, retail installmgaies contracts
secured by motor vehicles. We became a public cagnjpaNovember 1995. In 1999, we decided to capitabn
our management’s more than 40 years of experiemt@xgpertise in acquiring and managing consumeivable
portfolios for Asta Group. As a result, we ceasertpasing automobile contracts and, with the aastst and
financial support of Asta Group and a partner, pased our first significant consumer receivabldfpbio. Since
then, Asta Group ceased acquiring consumer redeiyaitfolios and, accordingly, does not competi w.

Industry Overview

The purchasing, servicing and collection of chargBdsemi-performing and performing consumer reables
is a growing industry that is driven by:

« increasing levels of consumer de
« increasing defaults of the underlying receivabes]
« increasing utilization of thii-party providers to collect such receivab

We believe that as a result of the difficulty ifleoting these receivables and the desire of ocaiiig
institutions to focus on their core businessestargknerate revenue from these receivables, otiggastitutions
are increasingly electing to sell these portfolios.

Strategy

Our primary objective is to utilize our managemsmkperience and expertise to effectively growhmusiness
by identifying, evaluating, pricing and acquiringnsumer receivable portfolios and maximizing cditats of such
receivables in a cost efficient manner. Our stratagludes:

« managing the collection and servicing of our consuraceivable portfolios, including outsourcing ajonity
of those activities to maintain low fixed overhe

« selling accounts on an opportunistic basis, gelyandien our efforts have been exhausted througtitioaal
collecting methods, when pricing is at our indiffiece point, or when we can capitalize on pricingrdu
times when we feel the pricing environment is h

« expanding financial flexibility through increaseabpital and lines of credi
« capitalizing on our strategic relationships to iifgrand acquire consumer receivable portfoliogy

« expanding our business through the purchase olicogisreceivables from new sources and consisting of
different asset classe

We believe that as a result of our management’srgxpce and expertise, and the fragmented yet gmpwi
market in which we operate, we are well-positioteeduccessfully implement our strategy.

We are a Delaware corporation whose principal etvezoffices are located at 210 Sylvan Avenue, Englod
Cliffs, New Jersey 07632. We were incorporated @wNlersey on July 7, 1994 and were reincorporat&klaware
on October 12, 1995 as a result of a merger willelaware corporation.

Consumer Receivables Business

Receivables Purchase Program

We purchase bulk receivable portfolios that inclatarged-off receivables, semi-performing receiealaind
performing receivables. These receivables congistgpily of MasterCard(R), Visa(R), private labekdit card
accounts, and telecom receivables, among othes typeceivables.

From time to time, we may acquire directly, andriactly through the consumer receivable portfotivet we
acquire, secured consumer asset portfolios.
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We identify potential portfolio acquisitions on angoing basis through:

« our relationships with industry participants, cotlen agencies, investors and our financing sou
« brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; ant

« other sources

Historically, the purchase prices of the consumeeivable portfolios we have acquired have rangau fess
than $500,000 to approximately $15,000,000, howeseeacquired one portfolio in March 2007 for $30llion. As
a part of our strategy to acquire consumer recéavadrtfolios, we have, from time to time, entenet, and may
continue to enter into, participation and profiashg agreements with our sources of financing@ndhird-party
collection agencies and attorneys. These arrangsmeay take the form of a joint bid, with one of ¢hird-party
collection agencies and attorneys or financing @@who assists in the acquisition of a portfolid @novides us
with more favorable non-recourse financing terma discounted servicing commission.

We utilize our relationships with brokers, thirdryacollection agencies and attorneys, and setleportfolios
to locate portfolios for purchase. Our senior mamagnt is responsible for;

« coordinating due diligence, including, in some saon-site visits to the sell¢'s office;
« stratifying and analyzing the portfolio characttcis,

« valuing the portfolio

 preparing bid proposal

* negotiating pricing and term

* negotiating and executing a purchase cont

« closing the purchase; ai

« coordinating the receipt of account documentatarttie acquired portfolio:

The seller or broker typically supplies us wittheit a sample listing or the actual portfolio besodd through
an electronic form of media. We analyze each comsugateivable portfolio to determine if it meets purchasing
criteria. We may then prepare a bid or negotigiarahase price. If a purchase is completed, managemonitors
the portfolio’s performance and uses this informain determining future buying criteria and prigin

After determining that an investment will yield adequate return on our acquisition cost after seyifees,
we use a variety of qualitative and quantitativetdes to determine the estimated cash flows. Asipusly
mentioned, included in our analysis for purchasingprtfolio of receivables and determining a reabtamestimate
of collections and the timing thereof, the folloginariables are analyzed and factored into oulirmlgestimates:

 the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
« the average balance of the receivak

« the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtrbie more difficult to collect or might be lessst
effective);

« past history of performance of similar assets —-wagpurchase portfolios of similar assets, we beliare
have built significant history on how these recblea will liquidate and cash flov

< number of days since cha-off;
« payments made since chg-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

* the locations of the debtors as there are betigessto attempt to collect in and ultimately weédhetter
predictability of the liquidations and the expectesh flows. Conversely, there are also statesenther
liquidation rates are not as good and that is factinto our cash flow analysi
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* jobs or property of the debtors found within pdiitds-with our business model, this is of particular
importance. Debtors with jobs or property are niikaly to repay their obligation and converselybtias
without jobs or property are less likely to rephgit obligation; anc

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtiginal issuer

We will obtain and utilize as appropriate inputrfr@ur third party collection agencies and attorpegsfurther
evidentiary matter, to assist us in developingemiibn strategies and in modeling the expected ftawis for a
given portfolio.

Once a receivable portfolio has been identifiedpfatential purchase, we prepare various analysssdban
extracting customer level data from external sagirother than the issuer, to analyze the potecdidctibility of
the portfolio. We also analyze the portfolio by qmaring it to similar portfolios previously acquireg us. In
addition, we perform qualitative analyses of ottmatters affecting the value of portfolios, incluglia review of the
delinquency, charge off, placement and recovericigsl of the originator as well as the collectianherity granted
by the originator to any third party collection agies, and, if possible, by reviewing their recgvefforts on the
particular portfolio. After these evaluations acenpleted, members of our senior management disbadtdings,
decide whether to make the purchase and finale@tite at which we are willing to purchase thetfodio.

We purchase most of our consumer receivable pa#falirectly from originators and other sellerslirating,
from time to time, our third-party collection agé&sand attorneys through privately negotiatedctiisales and
through auction type sales in which sellers of isedgles seek bids from several pre-qualified delstipasers. We
also, from time to time, use the services of breKer sourcing consumer receivable portfolios. ten for us to
consider a potential seller as a source of reckgah variety of factors are considered. Sellarstrdemonstrate tr
they have:

< adequate internal controls to detect fre
« the ability to provide post sale support; ¢
« the capacity to honor g-back and return warranty reque:

Generally, our portfolio purchase agreements pmotiichit we can return certain accounts to the seltéin a
specified time period. However, in some transastiove may acquire a portfolio with few, if any,htg to return
accounts to the seller. After acquiring a portfoli@ conduct a detailed analysis to determine whaadounts in the
portfolio should be returned to the seller. Althbube terms of each portfolio purchase agreeméierdexamples
of accounts that may be returned to the selleudel

« debts paid prior to the cutoff da

 debts in which the consumer filed bankruptcy ptiothe cutoff date
* debts in which the consumer was deceased prianttifaate; anc

+ fraudulent account:

Significant accounts returned to sellers for tlsedl year ended 2007 amounted to approximately0$hlion
for two portfolio purchases. Such accounts werecampliant accounts. Accounts returned to sellergi$oal year:
2006 and 2005 have been determined to be immat&ualpurchase agreements generally do not coatgin
provision for a limitation on the number of accautitat can be returned to the seller.

We generally use third-parties to determine bankampl deceased accounts, which allows us to fogus o
resources on portfolio collections. Under a typjpaitfolio purchase agreement, the seller refuhdsbrtion of the
purchase price attributable to the returned acsoointielivers replacement receivables to us. Oanaby, we will
acquire a well seasoned, or older, portfolio atduced price from a seller that is unable to mikef aur purchasin
criteria. When we acquire such portfolios, the pase price is discounted beyond the typical distsowe receive
on the portfolios we purchase that meet our puinbgagiteria.

In February 2006, we acquired VATIV Recovery LLO/ATIV") located in Sugar Land, Texas. VATIV
Recovery Systems LLC provides bankruptcy and deckascount servicing. The acquisition of VATIV piabes
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Asta with internal experience and proprietary systén support of servicing our own bankruptcy ardehsed
accounts, while also affording us the opporturatgnter new markets for acquisitions in the bantaypnd
deceased account fields.

Receivable Servicing

Our objective is to maximize our return on investtnen acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assailt,
before acquiring a portfolio, we analyze the pditfeo determine how to best maximize collectionsicost
efficient manner and decide whether to use ourniaieservicing and collection department or thiattp collection
agencies and attorneys.

Therefore, if we are successful in acquiring thefpbos, we can promptly process the receivabied were
purchased and commence the collection processké&Jatillection agencies that typically have onlyadfied
period of time to recover a receivable, as thefpliotowners we have significantly more flexibilignd can establi
payment programs.

Once a portfolio has been acquired, we or our tpady collection agencies or attorneys generallyrdoad al
receivable information provided by the seller into account management system and reconcile cémfaimation
with the information provided by the seller in fhherchase contract. We or our third-party collectgencies or
attorneys send notification letters to obligorgath acquired account explaining, among other nsater new
ownership and asking that the obligor contact maddition, we notify the three major credit repagtagencies of
our new ownership of the receivables.

We presently outsource the majority of our receleaervicing to third-party collection agencies atirneys.
Our senior management typically determines the@pjate thirdparty collection agency and attorneys based o
type of receivables purchased. Once a group ofuaales is sent to a third-party collection ageocwttorney, our
management actively monitors and reviews the thady collection agencies’ and attorneys’ perforogan an
ongoing basis. Our management receives detaildgisssaincluding collection activity and portfolp@rformance,
from our internal servicing departments to assist €évaluating the results of the efforts of thid-party collection
agencies and attorneys. Based on portfolio perfocaguidelines, our management will move certaieirables
from one third-party collection agency or attorteyanother, or to our internal servicing departmetanticipates
that this will result in an increase in collections

We have a collection center that currently empkygroximately 65 experienced persons with the agpfor
over 100 employees. This facility provides the miajoof our internal collection and servicing capies, giving us
flexibility and control over the servicing of ouortsumer receivables portfolios and assists us imtaring our
third-party collection agencies and attorneys.

We have four main internal servicing departments:
« collection/skiptrace

* legal;

 customer service; ar

e accounting

Collection/Skiptrace. The collection/skiptrace department is resporditt making contact with the obligors
and collecting on our consumer receivable portfotitat are not being serviced by third-party coitecagencies
and attorneys. This department uses a friendlytpower service approach to collect on receivablesodgh the use
of our collection software and telephone systeroheamllector is responsible for:

* contacting customer
« explaining the benefits of making payment on thkgalions; anc

« working with the customers to develop acceptablamaédo satisfy their obligation
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We and our third-party collection agencies andrattgs have the flexibility to structure repaymelaing that
accommodate the needs of obligors by:

- offering obligors a discount on the overall obligat and/ot

« tailoring repayment plans that provide for the paptof these obligations as a component of theyobis
monthly budget

We also use a series of collection letters, layem@ant reminders, and settlement offers that are@grat
specific intervals or at the request of a membeayurfcollection department. When the collectionatépent cannot
contact the customer by either telephone or nfal gccount is referred to the skiptrace department.

The skiptrace department is responsible for logadind contacting customers who could not be coedday
either the collection or legal departments. Thetséice employees use a variety of public and pitlaitd-party
databases to locate customers. Once a custonueiet and contact is made by a skiptracer, theuatds then
referred back to the collection or legal departnifenfollow-up. The skiptrace department is alsspensible for
finding current employers and locating assets tifjobs when this information is deemed necessary.

Legal. If the collection department determines thatdhstomer has the ability to satisfy his obligatior our
normal collection activities have not resulted fry aesolution of the customer’s obligations, theaamt is referred
to the legal department, which consists of non-Ewadministrative staff experienced in collectioorkv The legal
department refers legal case proceedings to outsidesel. The legal department also refers accdarte
skiptrace department to obtain a current phone munaoldress, the location of assets of the obbigdine identity o
the obligor's employer. In addition, the legal depeent communicates with the collection attornéya tve utilize
throughout the country. Over the past two and &yealrs, we have employed a more aggressive légaegy that
we believe will yield more collections over a longeriod of time.

Customer Service.The customer service department is responsible fo

 handling incoming calls from debtors and third-pamllection agencies that are responsible forectithg on
our consumer receivable portfolic

 coordinating customer inquiries and assisting thikection agencies in the collection proce

« handling bu-back and information requests from companies whe Iparchased receivables from
« working with the buyers during the transition perend post sale process; ¢

< handling any issues that may arise once a receiyawtfolio has been sol

Accounting. In addition to the customary accounting actigitithe Accounting department is responsible for:

* making daily deposits of customer payme
 posting these payments to the custc's account
< mailing monthly statements to customers;

« in conjunction with the customer service departmpraviding senior management with weekly and mignth
receivable activity and performance repa

Accounting employees also assist collection depamtremployees in handling customer disputes wigane tc
payment and balance information. The accountingudepent also assists the customer service deparimére
handling of buy-back requests from companies whe Iparchased receivables from us. In additionatteounting
department reviews the results of the collectionafsumer receivable portfolios that are beingisedvby third-
party collection agencies and attorneys.

Collections Represented by Account Sales

Certain collections represent account sales tor alilet buyers to help maximize revenue and casvsflove
feel that our business model of not having a langmber of collectors, coupled with a legal stratedpch is
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focused on attempting to attach liens and judgmemtsbligors, allows us the flexibility to sell ammts at prices
that are attractive to us and as important, selléls desirable accounts within our collectiveafpbos. There are
many factors that contribute to the decision ofchiieceivable to sell and which to service, inatigdi

« the age of the receivable
* the status of the receivabl— whether paying or nc¢-paying; anc

« the selling price

Collections represented by account sales for #ualffiyears ended September 30, 2007, 2006 andva&@5
$54.2 million, $55.0 million and $64.7 million, mectively. Collections represented by account sades percenta
of total collections for the fiscal years endedt8agber 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were 19.2%, 25.1W38&r3%,
respectively.

Marketing

The Company has established relationships withdyeowho market consumer receivable portfolios from
banks, finance companies and other credit providieraddition, the Company subscribes to nationélipations
that list consumer receivable portfolios for sdlke Company also directly contacts banks, finameepganies or
other credit providers to solicit consumer recelgalfor sale.

Competition

Our business of purchasing distressed consumeradtes is highly competitive and fragmented, ared w
expect that competition from new and existing conigawill increase. We compete with:

« other purchasers of consumer receivables, incluttind-party collection companies; a
« other financial services companies who purchasswer receivable:

Some of our competitors are larger and more estadi and may have substantially greater financial,
technological, personnel and other resources thahave, including greater access to the capitakenaystem. We
believe that no individual competitor or group ohtpetitors has a dominant presence in the market.

We compete with our competitors for consumer reafgly portfolios based on many factors, including:

 purchase price

 representations, warranties and indemnities regdg
« speed in making purchase decisions;

* reputation of the purchast

Our strategy is designed to capitalize on the markack of a dominant industry player. We beli¢kat our
management’s experience and expertise in idengfyémaluating, pricing and acquiring consumer nesigie
portfolios and managing collections coupled with stnategic alliances with third-party collectiogemcies and
attorneys and our sources of financing give usnapatitive advantage. However, we cannot assureatbatill be
able to compete successfully against current aréutompetitors or that competition will not incsedn the future.

Management Information Systems

We believe that a high degree of automation is ssamy to enable us to grow and successfully conmpitte
other finance companies. Accordingly, we continuatgrade our computer hardware and, when necessary
software to support the servicing and recoveryaoiscimer receivables acquired for liquidation. Our
telecommunications and computer systems allow gslickly and accurately process large amounts tf da
necessary to purchase and service consumer retepadtfolios. In addition, we rely on the inforriaat technology
of our third-party collection agencies and attoshapd periodically review their systems to enshag they can
adequately service our consumer receivable partfoli

10
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Due to our desire to increase productivity throagtomation, we periodically review our systemsgossible
upgrades and enhancements.

Government Regulation

The relationship of a consumer and a creditor fsrestvely regulated by federal, state and munidgas, rules
regulations and ordinances. These laws includeatzuhot limited to, the following federal statutasd regulations:
the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, the Fair CreditliBg Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act andetlfrair Credit
Reporting Act, as well as comparable statutesatestwhere consumers reside and/or where crediterscated.
Among other things, the laws and regulations applie to various creditors impose disclosure requanmts
regarding the advertisement, application, estafvlesit and operation of credit card accounts or difps of credit
programs. Federal law requires a creditor to d&ko consumers, among other things, the intesss,rfees, grace
periods and balance calculation methods assooigthdheir accounts. In addition, consumers arétledtto have
payments and credits applied to their accounts ptigrrto receive proscribed notices and to reghilleng errors to
be resolved promptly. In addition, some laws pritubrtain discriminatory practices in connectioithathe
extension of credit. Further, state laws may litinét interest rate and the fees that a creditorimppse on
consumers. Failure by the creditors to have cordplith applicable laws could create claims andtsgif offset by
consumers that would reduce or eliminate theirgattibns, which could have a material adverse etiratur
operations. Pursuant to agreements under whichuahase receivables, we are typically indemnifigdiast losse
resulting from the failure of the creditor to has@mmplied with applicable laws relating to the reedies prior to ou
purchase of such receivables.

Certain laws, including the laws described abovay fimit our ability to collect amounts owing withspect to
the receivables regardless of any act or omissiooun part. For example, under the federal FaidE&illing Act,
a credit card issuer may be subject to certaimdaind defenses arising out of certain transactionich a credit
card is used if the consumer has made a gooddt#mpt to obtain satisfactory resolution of a eabrelative to
the transaction and, except in cases where therspecified relationship between the person hagdhie card and
the credit card issuer, the amount of the initi@hsaction exceeds $50 and the place where tlied inénsaction
occurred was in the same state as the consuméing l@ddress or within 100 miles of that addresscordingly, as
a purchaser of defaulted receivables, we may psecheceivables subject to valid defenses on theopére
consumer. Other laws provide that, in certain ims¢s, consumers cannot be held liable for, or tradiility is
limited to $50 with respect to, charges to the itreard credit account that were a result of arutimarized use of
the credit card account. No assurances can be giaewcertain of the receivables were not estabtisks a result of
unauthorized use of a credit card account, andyrdily, the amount of such receivables may natdikectible by
us.

Several federal, state and municipal laws, rulegulations and ordinances, including, but not kaito, the
federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (“FDCRANd the Federal Trade Commission Act and compmsiate
statutes regulate consumer debt collection actiitshough, for a variety of reasons, we may nospecifically
subject to the FDCPA and certain state statutesfsgaly addressing third-party debt collectottsisiour policy to
comply with applicable laws in our collection adties. Additionally, our third-party collection ageies and
attorneys may be subject to these laws. To thenesttat some or all of these laws apply to ouresilbn activities
or our third-party collection agencies’ and attgisiecollection activities, failure to comply witlush laws could
have a material adverse effect on us.

Additional laws may be enacted that could impog#itamhal restrictions on the servicing and colleatof
receivables. Such new laws may adversely affecaltléy to collect the receivables.

We currently hold a number of licenses issued uagelicable consumer credit laws. Certain of ouramnt
licenses and any licenses that we may be requirebitain in the future may be subject to periodivawal
provisions and/oother requirements. Our inability to renew licenseto take any other required action with res
to such licenses could have a material adverseteffeon our results of operation and financial ¢ooul.

Employees

As of September 30, 2007, we had 172 full-time exygés. We are not a party to any collective barggin
agreement.
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You can visit our web site at www.astafunding.c@uopies of our 10-Ks, 10-Qs, 8-Ks and other SECntspo
are available there as soon as reasonably praaftealfiling electronically with the SEC. The Adtanding, Inc.
web site is not incorporated by reference in thigisn.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider these risk factorsvaluating the Company. In addition to the follogvrisks,
there may also be risks that we do not yet knowr tiat we currently think are immaterial that malgo impair our
business operations. If any of the following rieksur, our business, results of operation or finahcondition
could be adversely affected, the trading pricewof@mmon stock could decline and shareholders nhigle all or
part of their investmen

The Company has risks associated with its recenttfétio Purchase Agreement.

On February 5, 2007, Palisades Acquisition XV, LlaGyholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entén¢al
a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Portfolio Risetgreement”) with Great Seneca Financial Cotmora
Platinum Financial Services Corporation, Monarclpi@ Corporation, Colonial Credit Corporation, @aion
Capital Corporation, Sage Financial Corporation ldad@vker Financial Corporation (collectively, thegl®rs”),
under which we agreed to acquire a portfolio ofragjnately $6.9 billion in face value receivabldse(“Portfolio
Purchase”) for a purchase price of $300 millions20% of any future Net Payments (as defined irPirtfolio
Purchase Agreement) received by the Company &fke€bmpany has received Net Payments equal to b508é
purchase price plus our cost of funds. The Podf@iow owned by Palisades Acquisition XVI, LLC (IRades
XVI7)) predominantly consists of credit card acctsiand includes some accounts in collection litagaand
accounts as to which the Sellers have been awardgthents. The transaction was consummated on Mar2@07

Under the Portfolio Purchase Agreement, we asswegdin risks associated with the Portfolio Purehdhe
representations and warranties with respect t@trolio which we received from the Sellers hawdtations both
in scope and, in certain cases, duration, includitignitation of our put-back rights with respeatdertain types of
claims, a requirement that certain claims be brougthin 120 days of closing or be deemed waived a
limitation with respect to the Sellers’ responsilak for acts of prior owners. Other than the esentations
contained in the Portfolio Purchase Agreementatteounts were sold as is. No assurances can he thigewe will
have an adequate remedy if our understandings dh@ujuality, quantity and characteristics of theedunts in the
Portfolio prove to be contrary to our expectations.

We may not be able to satisfy our obligation under Receivable Financing Agreement.

The Receivable Financing Agreement required traptimcipal amount thereunder be reduced undehedsie
tied to projected collections on the Portfolio fhase. As we fell behind the minimum required arzation
schedule, principally as a result of sales of antothat were built into that schedule, and singeently we believe
that our strategy of suing debtors will ultimatedalize more than the sales of these accounts wwaltlice, the
Company and its lender entered into an amendmeéad dxecember 27, 2007. The amendment allows usegrea
flexibility to use our strategy and substantiallyrénates any scheduled sales of accounts usdtkioriginal
expectations. Additionally, the amendment effedyivextends the repayment schedule from 25 monti34 tmonths
While we believe that we will be able to satisfe tiew collection schedule, no assurances can ke gnat
collections will not slow further, notwithstandiogir recent engagement of a sub-servicer to asglstallection of
this Portfolio Purchase, as described in ltem 7pa&¢@ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdition and
Results of Operations. Such slowing of collectioasld cause us to fall behind the schedule andutteda our
obligations under the amended Receivable Finankgrgement.

The anticipated benefits of the Portfolio Purchastay not meet our expectations.

The Portfolio Purchase increased our assets achfardiquidation by more than 100%, so that ouamterm
future operating results are highly dependent erré¢turns realized from the Portfolio Purchase.|léhie believe
that we have the capability to manage such a sigmifly increased asset base, no assurances cavelpethat we
will not experience operational difficulties intatly or with our third party collection agenciesdaattorneys in
managing an asset base of this size. Further, wiglbelieve that the returns on the Portfolio Pasehwill be at
least as favorable as our historic
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returns on smaller portfolio purchases, no ass@snan be given with respect to our initial evabraof the quality
of the assets in the Portfolio nor with respeatuo ability to manage the Portfolio profitably.

We have incurred substantial debt from time to tinmeconnection with our purchase of consumer receble
portfolios, particularly with respect to the Portio Purchase Agreement, and may incur further dehtthe
future which could affect our ability to obtain adtional funds and may increase our vulnerability teconomic
or business downturns.

To finance the Portfolio Purchase, we needed torisabstantial indebtedness. On February 5, 2085 u
execution of the Portfolio Purchase Agreement, weaewequired to provide the Seller with a $60 willdeposit,
which we did by utilizing substantially all of ttaailability under our existing $175 million credicility. We made
a second deposit payment of $15 million on Febrd#r2007, which we did by amending our existimg lof credit
to increase availability temporarily from $175 naiti to $190 million, with reduction targets setpril 17, 2007
which were met.

The remaining $225 million was paid in full at ttlesing of the Portfolio Purchase on March 5, 2097,
borrowing approximately $227 million (inclusive ménsaction costs) under a new Receivables Fingncin
Agreement entered into by Palisades XVI, with aonéipancial institution as the funding source, sigting of debt
with full recourse only to Palisades XVI, and bagran interest rate which approximates 170 basiggover
LIBOR. The term of the agreement is three yearkagdets of Palisades XVI, principally the PortidHurchase, are
pledged to secure such borrowing, and all proceszisved as a result of the net collections froim Bortfolio
Purchase are to be applied to interest and prihofigthe underlying loan. The Company made certain
representations and warranties to the lender tpa@tighe transaction. As of September 30, 200 b#iance due on
the Receivable Financing Agreement was $184.8anilli

On December 4, 2007, we signed the Sixth Amendreethie Fourth Amended and Restated Loan Agreement
with a consortium of banks that temporarily incesathe total revolving loan commitment from $179,000 to
$185,000,000. The temporary increase of $10,00096uired to be repaid by February 29, 2008hénevent the
increase is not repaid by February 29, 2008, tea tutstanding portion of the temporary increasd sle repaid
over a six month period. The outstanding balan@kuthis line of credit at September 30, 2007 was@imately
$141.7 million. Our ability to grow through this:ié may be limited as we are approaching the uppérdf our
borrowing availability and we may need to seek @oldial financing.

As of September 30, 2007, Palisade XVI, the Comjzsaingirect wholly-owned subsidiary, was required t
remit an additional $13.1 million to its lenderarder to be in compliance under the Receivablericima
Agreement. The Company facilitated the ability afifades XVI to make this payment by borrowing $1r8illion
under its current revolving credit facility and sig another of its subsidiaries to purchase agrodf the Portfolio
Purchase from Palisade XVI at a price of $13.1iamilprior to the measurement date under the Reloleiva
Financing Agreement.

The Receivable Financing Agreement required thaptincipal amount thereunder be reduced undenhedsite
tied to projected collections on the Portfolio Fhase. As we fell behind the minimum required araation
schedule, principally as a result of sales of antothat were built into that schedule, and singeently we believe
that our strategy of suing debtors will ultimatedalize more than the sales of these accounts wwattlice, the
Company and its lender entered into an amendméad dzecember 27, 2007. The amendment allows usegrea
flexibility to use our strategy and substantiallyrénates any scheduled sales of accounts usdtkioriginal
expectations. Additionally, the amendment effedyivextends the repayment schedule from 25 monti34 tmonths
While we believe that we will be able to satisfg thew collection schedule, no assurance can be ¢
collections will not slow further, notwithstandiogir recent engagement of a sub-servicer to asilstallection of
this Portfolio Purchase, as described in ltem 7na&¢@ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdition and
Results of Operations. Such slowing of collectioosld cause us to fall behind the schedule ancutieda our
obligations under the amended Receivable Finankgrgement.
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By incurring such substantial indebtedness andahbyrring additional indebtedness from time to time
connection with the purchase of consumer receivabittolios in the future, we are subject to theksi associated
with incurring such indebtedness, including:

* we are required to dedicate a significant portibow cash flows from operations to pay debt serdosts
and, as a result, we will have less funds avail&i®perations, future acquisitions of consumeeneable
portfolios, and other purpose

« it may be more difficult and expensive to obtainliidnal funds through financings, if availableagit

* we are more vulnerable to economic downturns amctifhtions in interest rates, less able to withdstan
competitive pressures and less flexible in readtinghanges in our industry and general economic
conditions; anc

« if we defaulted under our existing credit faciliier if our creditors demanded payment of a porbioall of
our indebtedness, we may not have sufficient fundeake such paymen

We have pledged all of our portfolios of consunereivables to secure our borrowings and are sutgject
covenants that may restrict our ability to operaiebusiness.

As we borrow funds to purchase portfolios we madlyfutilize our availability under that facility ahno future
borrowings are permitted under the new Receivdbilesncing Agreement. This may place us at a cotiyeti
disadvantage as compared to less leveraged comspanie

Any indebtedness that we incur under our existing bf credit is collateralized by all of our patibs of
consumer receivables acquired for liquidation, pktiee Portfolio Purchase only collateralizes treedtvables
Financing Agreement. If we default under the indebess secured by our assets, including failucertaply with
borrowing base requirements, those assets woudd/ditable to the secured creditor to satisfy odigalions to the
secured creditor. In addition, our credit facilityposes certain restrictive covenants, includimgiicial covenants
and borrowing base requirements. Failure to satisfyof these covenants could result in all or afithe following:

 acceleration of the payment of our outstanding le@ness
« cross defaults to and acceleration of the paymedéother financing arrangemer
* our inability to borrow additional amounts under euisting financing arrangements; &
* our inability to secure financing on favorable tsror at all from alternative sourct
Any of these consequences could adversely affecaloility to acquire consumer receivable portfolérsl
operate our business.
We may not be able to purchase consumer receivablgfolios at favorable prices or on sufficienthatorable

terms or at all.

Our success depends upon the continued availabilitpnsumer receivable portfolios that meet ouchpasing
criteria and our ability to identify and financeethurchases of such portfolios. The availabilitgofisumer
receivable portfolios at favorable prices and emgacceptable to us depends on a number of famtitsle of our
control, including:

« the continuation of the current growth trend in ©amer debt
« the continued volume of consumer receivable paas$ahvailable for sale
« competitive factors affecting potential purchasard sellers of consumer receivable portfolios;

possible future changes in the bankruptcy lawse $éavs and homestead acts which could make it more
difficult for us to collect,
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We may not be able to continually replace our deited consumer receivables.

To operate profitably, we must continually acqursufficient amount of distressed consumer recédeaio
generate continued revenue. Furthermore, we camadict how our ability to identify and purchaseeiwables and
the quality of those receivables would be affedtdélere is a shift in consumer lending practicdwether caused by
changes in the regulations or accounting pracapgticable to debt buying and sustained economimdarn.

We have seen at certain times that the market fogairing consumer receivable portfolios has becomere
competitive, thereby diminishing from time to tinoair ability to acquire such receivables at prices are
willing to pay.

The growth in consumer debt may also be affected by

* aslowdown in the econom

« problems in the credit and housing mark

* reductions in consumer spendi

« changes in the underwriting criteria by originat@nsd

» changes in laws and regulations governing consieneing.

Any slowing of the consumer debt growth trend caelsult in a decrease in the availability of consum
receivable portfolios for purchase that could &ftee purchase prices of such portfolios.

Any increase in the prices we are required to padich portfolios in turn will reduce the profftany, we
generate from such portfolios.
Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate an@wese our stock price to decline.

Because of the nature of our business, our quam@drating results may fluctuate, which may adeigraffect
the market price of our common stock. Our resulty fluctuate as a result of any of the following:

« the timing and amount of collections on our consuraeeivable portfolios
 our inability to identify and acquire additionalrsumer receivable portfolio
+ adecline in the estimated future value of our oomsr receivable portfolio recoverie
* increases in operating expenses associated witlrdweth of our operation:
« general and economic market conditions;
« prices we are willing to pay for consumer receiegtdrtfolios.
Our projections of future cash flows from our porfio purchases may prove to be inaccurate, whiclulcb

result in reduced revenues or the recording of anpairment charge if we do not achieve the collecto
forecasted by our model.

We use qualitative and quantitative analysis tggmtdfuture cash flows from our portfolio purchasglere can
be no assurance, however, that we will be ablehdese the collections forecasted by our analysise are not
able to achieve these levels of forecasted cotlectiur revenues will be reduced or we may be reduo record an
impairment charge, which could result in a reducté our earnings. For the year ended Septembe2(81¥,, we
recorded impairment charges of $9.1 million. Impents were taken on eleven portfolios as relatlections
compared to our expectations on these portfoliag weteriorating, and this deterioration was condid by our
third party collection agencies and attorneys. Adc@ly, we believed that impairment charges wereassary.
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We may not be able to recover sufficient amountsaur consumer receivable portfolios to recover thasts
associated with the purchase of those portfoliogdan fund our operations.

We acquire and collect on consumer receivable glaytf that contain charged-off, semi-performing and
performing receivables. In order to operate prbfitaver the long term, we must continually purehasd collect
on a sufficient volume of receivables to generateenue that exceeds our costs. For accounts thaharged-off or
semi-performing, the originators or interim ownefdghe receivables generally have:

* made numerous attempts to collect on these oldiggtioften using both their in-house collectiorffstad
third-party collection agencie

« subsequently deemed these obligations as uncoliectind
« chargerwoff these obligations

These receivable portfolios are purchased at sigmf discounts to the amount the consumers owesdh
receivables are difficult to collect and actualoeeries may vary and be less than the amount esgbelet addition,
our collections may worsen in a weak economic cwile may not recover amounts in excess of our adopn and
servicing costs.

Our ability to recover on our portfolios and prodwsufficient returns can be negatively impactedhgyquality
of the purchased receivables. In the normal coofreeir portfolio acquisitions, some receivables rhayincluded in
the portfolios that fail to conform to certain teymf the purchase agreements and we may seeluta these
receivables to the seller for payment or replacemeseivables. However, we cannot guarantee thabasuch
sellers will be able to meet their payment obligiasi to us. Accounts that we are unable to retuseliers may yieli
no return. If cash flows from operations are Iésstanticipated as a result of our inability tdedt sufficient
amounts on our receivables, our ability to satmfy debt obligations, purchase new portfolios amdfoture growth
and profitability may be materially adversely affsat

We are subject to intense competition for the puasie of consumer receivable portfolios.

We compete with other purchasers of consumer rabks\portfolios, with third-party collection ageesiand
with financial services companies that manage theit consumer receivable portfolios. We compet¢herbasis o
price, reputation, industry experience and perfarteaSome of our competitors have greater capiggsonnel and
other resources than we have. The possible entmgwfcompetitors, including competitors that histally have
focused on the acquisition of different asset typesl the expected increase in competition fromeciimarket
participants may reduce our access to consumeivedxe portfolios. Aggressive pricing by our conipets could
raise the price of consumer receivable portfoliosve levels that we are willing to pay, which cotgduce the
number of consumer receivable portfolios suitableus to purchase or if purchased by us, reducpribfés, if any,
generated by such portfolios. If we are unableueipase receivable portfolios at favorable priaestall, our
finance income and earnings could be materiallyced.

We are dependent upon third parties to service garity of our consumer receivable portfolios.

Although we utilize our in-house collection staffdollect some of our receivables, we outsourcejority of
our receivable servicing. As a result, we are ddpehupon the efforts of our third- party colleatiagencies and
attorneys to service and collect our consumer vabées. However, any failure by our third partyleclion agencie
and attorneys to adequately perform collectionisesv/for us or remit such collections to us coulttemnally reduce
our finance income and our profitability. In additi our finance income and profitability could batarially
adversely affected if we are not able to securkaogment third party collection agencies and aégsrand redirect
payments from the debtors to our new third partiection agencies and attorneys promptly in thenéeeir
agreements with our third-party collection ageneied attorneys are terminated, our third-partyembibn agencies
and attorneys fail to adequately perform theirgddiions or if our relationships with such third{yacollection
agencies and attorneys adversely change.
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We rely on our third party collectors to comply Wil rules and regulations and maintain proper iatnal
controls over their accounting and operations.

Because the receivables were originated and serpigesuant to a variety of federal and/or stateslawa
variety of entities and involved consumers in @lisates, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico auotside the
United States, there can be no assurance thaigiha servicing entities have at all times beesubstantial
compliance with applicable law. Additionally, theran be no assurance that we or our third-partecadn
agencies and attorneys have been or will contioletat all times in substantial compliance withlaable law.
The failure to comply with applicable law and naintain proper controls in their accounting andrafiens could
materially adversely affect our ability to collemir receivables and could subject us to increassts @nd fines and
penalties.

Our collections may decrease if bankruptcy filingsrease.

During times of economic recession, the amounteddudted consumer receivables generally increagssh
contributes to an increase in the amount of petdmanakruptcy filings. Under certain bankruptcyriijs, a debtor’s
assets are sold to repay credit originators, maesihe defaulted consumer receivables we pur@rasgenerally
unsecured we often would not be able to colledhose receivables. We cannot assure you that dlection
experience would not decline with an increase imkbaptcy filings. If our actual collection expermmwith respect
to a defaulted consumer receivables portfoliogsificantly lower than we projected when we puratathe
portfolio, our earnings could be negatively affecte

If we are unable to access external sources of fioang, we may not be able to fund and grow our ogons.

We depend on loans from our credit facility andeotbxternal sources in part, to fund and expand our
operations. Our ability to grow our business ised&fent on our access to additional financing apialaesources.
The failure to obtain financing and capital as mekdould limit our ability to:

» purchase consumer receivable portfolios;

 achieve our growth plan

In addition, our financing sources impose certastrictive covenants, including financial covenaftslure to
satisfy any of these covenants could:

» cause our indebtedness to become immediately )
» preclude us from further borrowings from these taxissources; an

« prevent us from securing alternative sources @ffaing necessary to purchase consumer receivable
portfolios and to operate our busine

We use estimates for recognizing finance incomesabstantially all of our consumer receivable portim
investments and our earnings would be reduced ifued results are less than estimated.

We utilize the interest method of revenue recognifor determining our income recognized on finance
receivables, which is based on projected cash ftbatsmay prove to be less than anticipated anttidead to
reductions in revenue or impairment charges urtdeAmerican Institute of Certified Public Accourtgn
(“AICPA") Statement of Position (“SOP”) 03-3 Accatimmg for Loans or Certain Securities Acquired imransfer.
Under the guidance of SOP 03-3 (and the amendexi¢&&ulletin 6), static pools of accounts arebkshed.
These pools are aggregated based on certain comiskariteria. Each static pool is recorded at @ is
accounted for as a single unit for the recognitibmcome, principal payments and loss provisionc®a static po
is established for a quarter, individual receivaditeounts are not added to the pool (unless replag¢he seller) or
removed from the pool (unless sold or returnedhéosteller). SOP 03-3 (and the amended Practice
Bulletin 6) requires that the excess of the comtr@ocash flows over expected cash flows not begeized as an
adjustment of revenue or expense or on the bakimeet. The SOP initially freezes the internal oditesturn,
referred to as IRR, estimated when the accountsvalole are purchased as the basis for subsequpairment
testing. Significant increases in actual, or expedtture cash flows may be recognized prospegtihebugh an
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upward adjustment of the IRR over a portfolio’s e@ning life. Any increase to the IRR then becontesrtew
benchmark for impairment testing. Effective foichfyears beginning October 1, 2005 under SOP @@ the
amended Practice Bulletin 6), rather than lowetiregestimated IRR if the collection estimates arereceived or
projected to be received, the carrying value obal pvould be written down to maintain the then eutrlRR. Any
reduction in our earnings could materially adversdfect our stock price.

We may rely on third parties to locate, identify duievaluate consumer receivable portfolios availafide
purchase.

We may rely on third parties, including brokers #nidd-party collection agencies and attorneysdemtify
consumer receivable portfolios and, in some ingano assist us in our evaluation and purcha#igest portfolios.
As a result, if such third parties fail to identigceivable portfolios or if our relationships withch third parties are
not maintained, our ability to identify and purcbaslditional receivable portfolios could be matgriadversely
affected. In addition, if we, or such parties failcorrectly or adequately evaluate the value tlectibility of these
consumer receivable portfolios, we may pay too nfoclsuch portfolios and suffer an impairment and @arnings
could be negatively affected.

The loss of an asset type could impact our abitiyacquire receivable portfolios.

In the event one of the asset classes of recelwalilech we purchase is no longer available to usparchases
may decline and our results might suffer.

We may not be successful at acquiring receivableasew asset types or in implementing a new pricing
structure.

We may pursue the acquisition of receivable padfobf asset types in which we have little curexperience.
We may not be successful in completing any acqgoistof receivables of these asset types and mitelil
experience in these asset types may impair outyatilcollect on these receivables. This may caisst pay too
much for these receivables, and consequently, wenoigenerate a profit from these receivable ptaf
acquisitions.

The loss of any of our executive officers may adsa&ly affect our operations and our ability to sucstully
acquire receivable portfolios.

Arthur Stern, our Chairman and Executive Vice Rfest, Gary Stern, our President and Chief Executive
Officer, and Mitchell Cohen, our Chief Financialfioér are responsible for making substantiallynaéinagement
decisions, including determining which portfoli@sgurchase, the purchase price and other materiabtof such
portfolio acquisitions. These decisions are ins&ntal to the success of our business. The lodseddrvices of any
of our executive officers could disrupt our opeyati and adversely affect our ability to succesgfatiquire
receivable portfolios.

The Stern family effectively controls Asta, substafly reducing the influence of our other stockhdérs.

Members of the Stern family including Arthur Ste@ary Stern and Barbara Marburger, daughter ofukrth
Stern and sister of Gary Stern, trusts or custadiabunts for the benefit of minor children of Bando Marburger ar
Gary Stern, Asta Group, Incorporated, and limitadility companies controlled by Judith R. Fedeece of Arthur
Stern and cousin of Gary Stern, in which ArthurrStélice Stern (wife of Arthur Stern and mother@éry Stern
and Barbara Marburger), Gary Stern and trustshi@benefit of the issue of Arthur Stern and thedssf Gary Ster
hold all economic interests, own in the aggregpfg@imately 24.0% of our outstanding shares of mmm stock.
In addition, other members of the Stern Familyhsas adult children of Gary Stern and Barbara May&y own
additional shares. As a result, the Stern familghike to influence significantly the actions thequire stockholder
approval, including:

« the election of a majority of our directors; ¢

« the approval of mergers, sales of assets or othrporate transactions or matters submitted forkstoicler
approval.
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As a result, our other stockholders may have ldtleo influence over matters submitted for stodéten
approval. In addition, the Stern family’s influenoguld preclude any unsolicited acquisition of nd aonsequently
materially adversely affect the price of our comnstaock.

We have experienced rapid growth over the past sdwears, which has placed significant demands our
administrative, operational and financial resourcesd could result in an increase in our expenses.

We plan to continue our growth, which could pladditional demands on our resources and cause peneg:
to increase. Future internal growth will dependaamumber of factors, including:

« the effective and timely initiation and developmehtelationships with sellers of consumer receigab
portfolios and strategic partne

* our ability to maintain the collection of consummeceivables efficiently; an

* the recruitment, motivation and retention of quetifpersonnel

Sustaining growth will also require the implemeittatof enhancements to our operational and findncia
systems and will require additional managementraifmmal and financial resources. There can bessarance that
we will be able to manage our expanding operatafestively or that we will be able to maintainascelerate our
growth or attract additional management talentamgfailure to do so could adversely affect outightio generate
finance income and control our expenses.

Government regulations may limit our ability to reger and enforce the collection of our receivables.

Federal, state and municipal laws, rules, reguiatand ordinances may limit our ability to recoard enforce
our rights with respect to the receivables acquingds. These laws include, but are not limitedhe,following
federal statutes and regulations promulgated tinelexuand comparable statutes in states where cansupside
and/or where creditors are located:

« the Fair Debt Collection Practices A
* the Federal Trade Commission A

« theTruth-In-LendingAct;

« the Fair Credit Billing Act

« the Equal Credit Opportunity Act; al
« the Fair Credit Reporting Ac

We may be precluded from collecting receivablepweshase where the creditor or other previous owner
third-party collection agency and attorney faileccomply with applicable law in originating or s&ing such
acquired receivables. Laws relating to the colectf consumer debt also directly apply to our bess. Our failure
to comply with any laws applicable to us, includstgte licensing laws, could limit our ability tecover on
receivables and could subject us to fines and fesalhich could reduce our earnings and resudtdefault under
our loan arrangements. In addition, our third-padifection agencies and attorneys may be subjettisise and
other laws and their failure to comply with suctvéacould also materially adversely affect our fiommcome and
earnings.

Additional laws may be enacted that could impogtitamhal restrictions on the servicing and collentf
receivables. Such new laws may adversely affecaltiiéy to collect on our receivables, which coaldo adversely
affect our finance income and earnings.

Because our receivables are generally originatddsarviced pursuant to a variety of federal ansfate laws
by a variety of entities and may involve consunerall 50 states, the District of Columbia and Rodico, there
can be no assurance that all original servicingiesthave at all times been in substantial cormgkawith applicabl
law. Additionally, there can be no assurance thabwour thirdparty collection agencies and attorneys have be
will continue to be at all times in substantial q@iance with applicable law. Failure to comply with
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applicable law could materially adversely affect ahility to collect our receivables and could sdbjus to
increased costs, fines and penalties.

Class action suits and other litigation in our inditry could divert our management’s attention fronperating
our business and increase our expenses.

Certain originators and third-party collection ages and attorneys in the consumer credit indusime been
subject to class actions and other litigation. @&include failure to comply with applicable lawslaegulations
and improper or deceptive origination and servigractices. If we become a party to such classmstiits or othe
litigation, our results of operations and finana@ahdition could be materially adversely affected.

We may seek to make acquisitions that prove unsasfig or strain or divert our resources.

We may seek to grow Asta through acquisitions lafteel businesses. Such acquisitions present hisksould
materially adversely affect our business and firemerformance, including:

« the diversion of our managem’s attention from our everyday business activi
« the assimilation of the operations and personndi@hcquired busines

« the contingent and latent risks associated wittpdst operations of, and other unanticipated proslarisinc
in, the acquired business; a

« the need to expand management, administration p@ichtional system:

If we make such acquisitions we cannot predict \vbiet

« we will be able to successfully integrate the opilers of any new businesses into our busin
« we will realize any anticipated benefits of compteaicquisitions; ¢
« there will be substantial unanticipated costs aasedt with acquisitions

In addition, future acquisitions by us may resnit i

* potentially dilutive issuances of our equity setesi
« the incurrence of additional debt; a

« the recognition of significant charges for depréoimand amortization related to goodwill impairrhand
other intangible assel

Although we have no present plans or intentions¢@rginuously evaluate potential acquisitions dédbed
businesses. However, we have not reached any agnt@marrangement with respect to any particulauré
acquisition and we may not be able to completeaampisitions on favorable terms or at all.

Our investments in other businesses and entry inw business ventures may adversely affect our apiens.

We have and may continue to make investments irpaoies or commence operations in businesses and
industries that are not identical to those withahhive have historically been successful. If thesestments or
arrangements are not successful, our earnings beutdaterially adversely affected by increased egee and
decreased finance income.

If our technology and phone systems are not operatl, our operations could be disrupted and our ktyito
successfully acquire receivable portfolios could &dversely affected.

Our success depends, in part, on sophisticatechtalmunications and computer systems. The temptoasyo
our computer and telecommunications systems, thireagualty, operating malfunction or service previfilure,
could disrupt our operations. In addition, we nmesbrd and process significant amounts of dataktyuand
accurately to properly bid on prospective acquisgiof receivable portfolios and to access, mairaad
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expand the databases we use for our collectiomamdtoring activities. Any failure of our informat systems and
their backup systems would interrupt our operatide may not have adequate backup arrangemenrad fafrour
operations and we may incur significant losses ibatage occurs. In addition, we rely on third-paxtllection
agencies and attorneys who also may be adverdelsted in the event of an outage in which the tpiadty
collection agencies and attorneys do not have adedpackup arrangements. Any interruption in o@rations or
our third-party collection agencies’ and attorneysérations could have an adverse effect on outtsesf
operations and financial condition.

Our organizational documents and Delaware law mayke it harder for us to be acquired without the czamt
and cooperation of our board of directors and mareagent.

Several provisions of our organizational documemis Delaware law may deter or prevent a takeovemgi,
including a takeover attempt in which the potentiaichaser offers to pay a per share price gréa@rthe current
market price of our common stock. Under the terfrmuo certificate of incorporation, our board ofatitors has the
authority, without further action by the stockhatsleo issue shares of preferred stock in one aerseries and to
fix the rights, preferences, privileges and resitiits thereof. The ability to issue shares of pref# stock could tend
to discourage takeover or acquisition proposalsuapported by our current board of directors. Iditoh, we are
subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General @atjpn Law, which restricts business combinatiaith some
stockholders once the stockholder acquires 15%oawve rof our common stock.

Future sales of our common stock may depress oocktprice.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our camstock in the public market could cause a deergathe
market price of our common stock. We had 13,918sl&8es of common stock issued and outstandin§tae dats
hereof. Of these shares, 3,341,008 are held bgféiliates and are saleable under Rule 144 of #eufties Act of
1933, as amended. The remainder of our outstarstiages were freely tradeable. In addition, optiorurchase
approximately 1,337,438 shares of our common staere outstanding as of September 30, 2007, of which
1,325,438 were vested. The exercise prices of gptibns were substantially lower than the curreatkat price of
our common stock. We may also issue additionaleshi@r connection with our business and may graditiadal
stock options or restricted shares to our emplgy&fésers, directors and consultants under ous@néor future
equity compensation plans or we may issue wartarttsird parties outside of such plans. As of Segtter 30, 2007
there were 1,325,334 shares available for suchogerpiith such shares available under the Equity geoisation
Plan and the 2002 Stock Option Plan. No more optaye available for issuance under the 1995 Stqtlo®Plan.
If a significant portion of these shares were solthe public market, the market value of our comrstock could t
adversely affected.

From time to time, the Company’s Chairman, Arthter8 and President and Chief Executive OfficeryGar
Stern adopted prearranged stock trading plansdordance with guidelines specified by Rule 10b5idar the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Wiilsuch plans are in effect at present, signifisaigs by the
Stern family could have an adverse effect on maskiees for our common stock.

The Company recently purchased a portfolio in a Sodmerican country exposing the Company to currgnc
rate fluctuations.

As a result of this purchase, the Company will kgosed to currency rate fluctuations as the catlaston this
portfolio will be denominated in the local currenafythe South American country. Additionally, onvéstment
could also be exposed to the same currency rigtrehgthened U.S. dollar could decrease the Ul&ramuivalen
of the local currency collections, and our currenogversion to U.S. dollars would suffer.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comment

The Company has received no written comments ragaits periodic or current reports from the stffthe
Securities and Exchange Commission that were is$8@dlays or more preceding the end of its 20@alfigear an
that remain unresolved.
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Item 2. Properties.

Our executive and administrative offices are lodateEnglewood Cliffs, New Jersey, where we lease
approximately 13,000 square feet of general offjgace for approximately $20,000 per month, pldgies. The
lease expires on July 31, 2010.

In addition, our call center is located in Bethlehdéennsylvania, where we lease approximately 9sQvare
feet of general office space for approximately $00,per month. The lease expires on December 3B, Zur
office in Sugarland, Texas occupies approximate®d@ square feet of general office space for apprately
$6,000 per month. The lease expires February 281.20

We believe that our existing facilities are adeguat our current and anticipated needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business, we areliragbin numerous legal proceedings. We regulaiiljaite
collection lawsuits, using our network of third galaw firms, against consumers. Also, consumecasionally
initiate litigation against us, in which they alethat we have violated a federal or state laviaéngrocess of
collecting on their account. We do not believe thase ordinary course matters are material tdosiness and
financial condition. As of the date of this Form-KQwe were not involved in any material litigationwhich we
were a defendant.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006, a suiasidof the Company received subpoenas from three
jurisdictions to produce information in connectiwith debt collection practices in those jurisdiao The Compan
has fully cooperated with the issuing agenciestalprovided the requested documentation. Onaljatisn has
closed the case with no action taken against thepgaay. The Company has not made any provision eipect to
the remaining matters in the financial statemesttha nature of these matters constitute informatguests only.

In the course of conducting its business, the Campsrequired by certain of the jurisdictions viitlwwhich it
operates to obtain licenses and permits to corithucbllection activities. The Company has beerifieot by one
such jurisdiction that it did not operate for aipérof time from February 1, 2005 to April 17, 20@6h the proper
license. The Company did not make any provisiorstmh matter in its financial statements. Therelsen no
communication from the jurisdiction regarding thigtter for over a year and we consider this matteyed.
Currently we are properly licensed and in goodditamwith the jurisdiction.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holde

None.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Since August 15, 2000, our common stock has beetedwn the NASDAQ National Market system under the
symbol “ASFL.” On December 8, 2007 there were apinately 29 holders of record of our common stddigh
and low sales prices of our common stock since irt@, 2005 as reported by NASDAQ are set fourtbvbésuch
guotations reflect inter-dealer prices without itetearkup, markdown, or commission, and may notessarily
represent actual transactions):

High — _Low
October 1, 2005 to December 31, 2( 33.48  23.2¢
January 1, 2006 to March 31, 2C 35.3¢  26.8(
April 1, 2006 to June 30, 20( 43.2¢ 30.6i
July 1, 2006 to September 30, 2( 39.3C 31.6i
October 1, 2006 to December 31, 2( 37.28 27.6:
January 1, 2007 to March 31, 2C 43.8¢ 29.0¢
April 1, 2007 to June 30, 20( 46.5C 36.9(
July 1, 2007 to September 30, 2( 43.8C 31.8¢

Dividends

During the year ended September 30, 2007, the Coymgeclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating
$2,221,000 ($0.04 per share, per quarter), of w&37,000 was paid November 1, 2007. During the gaded
September 30, 2006 the Company declared quartesly dividends aggregating $7,687,000 which incl%ie84
per share, per quarter, plus a one time speciaetid declared September 11, 2006 of $0.40 peesifarhich
$6,052,000 was paid November 1, 2006. During tlae gaded September 30, 2005, the Company declagetedy
cash dividends of $1,901,000 ($0.035 per sharequearer), of which $476,000 was paid NovembelOD52 We
expect to pay a regular cash dividend in futurertgus. This will be at the discretion of the boafdlirectors and
will depend upon our financial condition, operatiegults, capital requirements and any other fadtwe board of
directors deems relevant. In addition, our agre¢swith our lenders may, from time to time, regtdar ability to
pay dividends.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Cormpensation Plans

Included in the following table are the number pfions outstanding, the average price and the nuofbe
available options remaining available for futurguiance under equity compensation plans.

Number of
Securities
Remaining Available
Number of for Future Issuance
Securities to be Under Equity
Issued Upon Weighted-Average Compensation Plan:
Exercise of Exercise Price of (Excluding
Outstanding Outstanding Securities
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Reflected in Column
Equity Compensation Plan and Rights and Rights (@)
Information:Plan Category (a) (b) ()
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs 1,337,431 $ 9.3¢ 1,325,33
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtglers 0 0 0
Total 1,337,431 $ 9.3¢ 1,325,33
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Performance Graph

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fdrttany of our filings under the Securities Act 883, as
amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 193dresnded, that might incorporate by reference this
Form 1(-K Statement, in whole or in part, the followingrfeemance Graph shall not be incorporated by refere
into any such filings.

The following graph compares the cumulative totereholder return on our Common Stock since
September 30, 2002, with the cumulative returrtierNASDAQ Stock Market (US) Index and five stocks
comprising our peer group index over the same gedesuming the investment of $100 on Septembe2(BIR, anc
the reinvestment of all dividends. We declareddénids of $0.12 per share in fiscal 2004 of whicl®9$8 was paid
November 1, 2004. During the year ended Septene2@®5, we declared quarterly cash dividends aggdireg
$0.16 per share, of which $0.04 per share waspaicember 1, 2005. During the year ended Septenhe2®6,
we declared quarterly cash dividends aggregatingehfer share, of which $0.44 per share was paicthiber 1,
2006. Included in the $0.44 was a special dividefi§0.40 per share. During the year ended SepteB8the2007, w
declared quarterly cash dividends aggregating $oet&hare, of which $0.04 per share was paid Nbeerh, 2007

COMPARE 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG ASTA FUNDING, INC.,
NASDAQ MARKET INDEX AND PEER GROUP INDEX

THILLARS

= AST A FURDING, [0, = M = PEER GROUP INDEN
=l N ASDAC MARKET NDEX

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON SEPT. 30, 2002
ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPT. 30, 2007
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth a summary of our swidated financial data as of and for the fivedisyears
ended September 30, 2007. The selected finandialfdiathe five fiscal years ended September 3072B8ave been
derived from our audited consolidated financiatestzents. The selected financial data presentedvishiould be
read in conjunction with our consolidated finanattements, related notes, other financial inféionancluded
elsewhere, and Item 7. See “Management’s Discasaa Analysis of Financial Condition and Resufts o
Operations” in this Annual Report. All share and plgare amounts have been retroactively restatgivéoeffect to
a 2:1 stock split in March 2004.

Year Ended September 30
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share data)

Operations Statement Da

Finance incom: $138,35¢ $101,02: $69,47¢ $51,17¢ $34,86:
Other income. 2,181 40k — —
Equity in earnings of ventul 22E 55(

Total revenue. 140,76. 101,97¢ 69,47¢ 51,17¢ 34,86:
Costs and expense

General and administratiy 25,45( 18,26¢ 15,34( 11,25¢ 7,831
Interest expense 18,24¢ 4,641 1,85z 84t 1,85¢
Impairments 9,097 2,24¢ — — —
Third party servicing — — 1,31¢ 5,56¢
Provision for credit losses — — 30C —
Total expense 52,79! 25,15¢ 17,19: 13,71¢ 15,25¢
Income before provisions for income tax 87,96¢ 76,82t 52,28t 37,45¢ 19,60¢
Provisions for income taxe: 35,70: 31,06( 21,29( 15,21¢ 8,03
Net income $ 52,26¢ $ 45,76F $30,99¢ $22,237 $11,57¢
Basic net income per she $ 37¢ $ 33€ $ 22¢ $ 167 $ 1.2¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 356 $ 31z $ 21t $ 157 $ 1.1:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Other Financial Date
For the Year ended September

Cash collection $ 281¢ $ 2145 $ 168¢ $ 114 $ 80t
Portfolio purchases, at cc 440.¢ 200.z 126.C 103.% 115.¢
Portfolio purchases, at fa 10,891.¢ 5,194.( 3,445.; 2,833.¢ 3,576.¢
Return on average assets 12.(% 19.6% 18.2% 16.2% 15.(%
Return on average stockholc’ equity(1) 24.&% 27.&% 23.% 21.5% 18.4%
Dividends declared per share $ 01 $ 056 $ 014 $ 0.1z $ 0.02¢
At September 3(

Total asset 580.: 287.¢ 180.( 158.¢ 113.¢
Total debt 326.t 82.¢ 29.2 39.4 16.4
Total stockholder equity 237.t 184.: 145.2 114 92.4
Inception to dat— September 3(

Cumulative aggregate purchases, at 29,593.( 18,701.¢ 13,507.¢ 10,062. 7,349.(

(1) The return on average assets is computed by diitt income by average total assets for the figeat. The
return on average stockholders’ equity is compubitedividing net income by the average stockholdecgiity
for the fiscal year. Both ratios have been computgdg beginning and peri-end balance:

(2) Includes a special dividend of $0.40 per sharedb62
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operatior
Cautions Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaimfard-looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%rward{ooking statements typically are identified by w$éerms
such as “may”, “will", “should”, “plan”, “expect”;anticipate”, “estimate”, and similar words, alttgfusome
forward-looking statements are expressed diffeyeRtbrward looking statements represent our judgnmegarding
future events, but we can give no assurance tleatjslgments will prove to be correct. Such statgsare subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause acasailts to differ materially from those projectedsuch forward-
looking statements. Certain factors which couldarially affect our results and our future perforraiare
described above under Item 1A “Risk Factors” anldweinder“Critical Accounting Policies” in “ltem 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations. “ Forward-|oaki
statements are inherently uncertain as they amdb@s current expectations and assumptions comgefuiure
events and are subject to numerous known and unkmnigks and uncertainties. We caution you not &z@lundue
reliance on these forward-looking statements, whighonly predictions and speak only as of the datkis report.
Except as required by law, we undertake no oblbgatth update or publicly announce revisions to famyard-
looking statements to reflect future events or tigwments. Unless the context otherwise requiresteahms “we”,
“us” “the Company”, or “our” as used herein referAsta Funding, Inc. and our subsidiaries.

Overview

We are primarily engaged in the business of aaggimanaging, servicing and recovering on portfoti
consumer receivables. These portfolios generaligisd of one or more of the following types of comer
receivables:

 charged-off receivables -accounts that have been written-off by the origireind may have been
previously serviced by collection agenci

« semi-performing receivables aecounts where the debtor is making partial ogirtar monthly payments,
but the accounts may have been wr-off by the originators; an

« performing receivable—accounts where the debtor is making regular momhijyments that may or may
not have been delinquent in the p

We acquire these consumer receivable portfoli@ssignificant discount to the amount actually owgdhe
borrowers. We acquire these portfolios after aitatale and quantitative analysis of the underlyiageivables and
calculate the purchase price so that our estinzst flow offers us an adequate return on our aitgpn costs and
servicing expenses. After purchasing a portfolie,agtively monitor its performance and review adjlist our
collection and servicing strategies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors aherstthrough privately negotiated direct salesamadions il
which sellers of receivables seek bids from sevyaequalified debt purchasers. We pursue new aitipris of
consumer receivable portfolios on an ongoing biés@ugh:

* our relationships with industry participants, cotlen agencies, investors and our financing soul
« brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; ant

» other sources

Critical Accounting Policies
We account for our investments in consumer recédvpbrtfolios, using either:

* The interest method; «

* The cost recovery methao

As we believe our extensive liquidating experieimceertain asset classes such as distressed ceedit
receivables, telecom receivables, consumer loaivaales, retail installment contracts, mixed cansu
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receivables, and auto deficiency receivables hasmad, we use the interest method for accountinguibstantially
all asset acquisitions within these classes ofivabées when we believe we can reasonably estithatéming of
the cash flows. In those situations where we difyecar acquisitions into other asset classes wher@o not
possess the same expertise or history, or we caeasbnably estimate the timing of the cash flamesptilize the
cost recovery method of accounting for those pbotoof receivables.

Over time, as we continue to purchase asset cl&ssles point where we believe we have developed th
requisite expertise and experience, we are moedylto utilize the interest method to account facts purchases.

Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company accountedganvestment in finance receivables using therest
method under the guidance of Practice Bulleting&Hepurchase was treated as a separate portfakkzeifvables
and was considered a separate financial investraedtaccordingly we did not aggregate such loadguRractice
Bulletin 6 as the underlying collateral had simitharacteristics. As SOP 03-3 was adopted by thepgaay for our
fiscal year beginning October 1, 2005, we begamexgging portfolios of receivables acquired shaspgcific
common characteristics which were acquired withgiven quarter. We currently consider for aggregaportfolios
of accounts, purchased within the same fiscal quatiat generally meet the following characterssti

* Same issuer/originat

< Same underlying credit quali

« Similar geographic distribution of the accou

« Similar age of the receivable a

« Same type of asset class (credit cards, telecoin

After determining that an investment will yield adequate return on our acquisition cost after seryifees,
including court costs which are expensed as indume use a variety of qualitative and quantitafaetors to
determine the estimated cash flows. As previousntioned, included in our analysis for purchasimpsfolio of

receivables and determining a reasonable estinfiai@lections and the timing thereof, the followingriables are
analyzed and factored into our original estimates:

« the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
« the average balance of the receivak

« the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtrbie more difficult to collect or might be lessst
effective);

« past history of performance of similar assets -wagpurchase portfolios of similar assets, we beliare
have built significant history on how these recblea will liquidate and cash flov

< number of days since cha-off;
e payments made since cha-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

* the locations of the debtors as there are betigessto attempt to collect in and ultimately weédhetter
predictability of the liquidations and the expectesh flows. Conversely, there are also statesenther
liquidation rates are not as good and that is factinto our cash flow analysi

* jobs or property of the debtors found within padiitds-with our business model, this is of particular
importance. Debtors with jobs or property are niikaly to repay their obligation and converselybtias
without jobs or property are less likely to rephgit obligation ; ant

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtiginal issuer

We will obtain and utilize as appropriate inputrfr@ur third party collection agencies and attorpnegsfurther
evidentiary matter, to assist us in developingemiibn strategies and in modeling the expected ftawis for a
given portfolio.

We acquire accounts that have experienced detgdoraf credit quality between origination and thege of
our acquisition of the accounts. The amount paidafportfolio of accounts reflects our determinatibat it is
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probable we will be unable to collect all amounts éccording to the portfolio of accounts contrattarms. We
consider the expected payments and estimate therdgrand timing of undiscounted expected principdgrest and
other cash flows for each acquired portfolio codphéth expected cash flows from accounts availédreales. The
excess of this amount over the cost of the podfokpresenting the excess of the account’s caslsfexpected to
be collected over the amount paid, is accretediim@ome recognized on finance receivables oveexpected
remaining life of the portfolio.

We believe we have significant experience in aéagicertain distressed consumer receivable poodit a
significant discount to the amount actually owedunglerlying debtors. We acquire these portfolioy after both
gualitative and quantitative analyses of the unyileglreceivables are performed and a calculatedhase price is
paid so that we believe our estimated cash flowrsftis an adequate return on our costs includimvics®y
expenses. Additionally, when considering largetfptio purchases of accounts, or portfolios fromsuisrs from
whom we have little or limited experience, we h#tve added benefit of soliciting our third partyleotion agencies
and attorneys for their input on liquidation raéesl at times incorporate such input into the preeoffer for a
given portfolio and the estimates we use for oyreeted cash flows.

Typically, when purchasing portfolios for which Wwave the experience detailed above, we have exjpesa!
recovering 100% return of our invested capital baikin an 18-28 monttime frame and expectations of colleci
in the range of 130-150% of our invested capitar®+5 years. Historically, we have generally bable to achieve
these results and we continue to use this as @is fi establishing the original cash flow estiesafor our portfoli
purchases. We routinely monitor these results atj#tie actual cash flows and, in the event the flagls are belov
our expectations and we believe there are no reasdeting to mere timing differences or explaieati¢lays (such
as can occur particularly when the court systeimviglved) for the reduced collections, an impairtn&ould be
recorded as a provision for credit losses. Conlgraethe event the cash flows are in excess ofeopectations ar
the reason is due to timing, we would defer thec&ss” collection as deferred revenue.

Results of Operations

The following discussion of our operations and fiicial condition should be read in conjunction watir
financial statements and notes thereto includegdisre in this prospectus. In these discussionst peycentages
and dollar amounts have been rounded to aid pretsemt As a result, all such figures are approxiomst

Years Ending September 30
2007 2006 2005

Finance incomi 98.2% 99.1% 100.(%
Other income 15% 04% 0.C%
Equity in earnings of ventul 0.2% 05% 0.C%
Total revenue 100.% 100.(% 100.(%
General and administrative expen 18.1% 17.2% 22.1%
Interest expens 13.0% 4.€% 2.7%
Impairments 6.5% 2.2% 0.%
Income before provision for income tay 62.4% 75.% 75.%
Provision for income taxe 25.06 30.2% 30.6%
Net income 37.% 44.% 44.%

Year Ended September 30, 2007 Compared to the ¥Eealed September 30, 2006

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2007, finarmmaria increased $37.3 million or 37.0% to
$138.4 million from $101.0 million for the year exdtiSeptember 30, 2006. The increase in financeriaguimarily
resulted from an increase in the average outstgridirel of consumer receivable accounts acquiretidoidation
during the year ended September 30, 2007, as ceahpathe prior year, coupled with the effect guatiments to
accretable yields on certain portfolios. The averiggel of consumer receivables acquired for ligti@h increased
from $215.0 million for the year ended September2806 to $401.4 million for the same
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period in 2007. The increase in the average lelvebosumer receivables acquired for liquidatiodug primarily to
the Portfolio Purchase in March 2007. During tharyended September 30, 2007, we acquired cons@ueirable
portfolios at a cost of $440.9 million as compat@&200.2 million during the prior year. During thear ended
September 30, 2007, commissions and fees assogidtedross collections from our third party colieo agencies
and attorneys increased $10.9 million, or 10.3%41t96.6 million from $105.7 million for year end8éptember 3(
2006. The increase is indicative of a shift tosh# strategy implemented by the Company and ireduativances of
court costs by our legal network, and by us. Wthiedollar amount has increased, the cost as apage of
collections decreased during the year ended 2004 slight percentage decrease reflects slightletaates charge
by the servicers of the large portfolio and othentfolios they service for us. Our network of atteys typically
advance the cost of suing debtors. These cour$ epstrecovered by our attorneys from collectietgived from
debtor payments. During the fourth quarter endgaie®eber 30, 2007, the Company accrued $1.8 mifbon
lawsuits commenced against debtors, primarily tierRortfolio Purchase. We do anticipate expendingtaosts
during fiscal year 2008 on the Portfolio Purchaserder to accelerate the suit process. As we moatio purchase
portfolios and utilize our third party collectiogencies and attorney networks, the contingencyshesld stabilize
in the 30%-33% range of gross collections based tipe current mix of portfolios.

Adjustments to accretable yields on certain padfolvere made based on available information, asedh on
improved liquidation rates from our third party leation agencies and attorneys. Management belibees
anticipated collections on these portfolios torexcess of our original projections. As we belithese improved
liquidation rates will continue on these portfoliege adjusted our accretable yields by $16.6 nmiland
$44.5 million for the years ended September 30720@ 2006, respectively. Finance income relatebeo
accretable yield reclassifications during the yaaded September 30, 2007 was approximately $11libmiwhile
our expectations on our fiscal year 2007 purchasesower than in the prior year, the portfolia#l &t our
investment criteria. Income recognized from fuliyatized portfolios (zero based revenue) was $&8ligon and
$4.4 million for the years ended September 30, 20272006, respectively. The increase is due pifyntarmore
pools which were fully amortized in the forth quearof 2007, and were predominantly derived fronditreard
purchases from one issuer made in 2003 and 200tektbm portfolios purchased from 2004 through5200
Collections with regard to the $6.9 billion facdueportfolio purchased in the second quartersifdi year 2007,
(the “Portfolio Purchase”) were $55.0 million thghuSeptember 30, 2007, which includes approximately
$5.5 million of accounts returned to the selled &inance income earned was $20.4 million.

Other income. Other income of $2.2 million for the year endegh®mber 30, 2007 includes interest income
from banks and other loan instruments substantéadtired in 2007, which were collected duringfiheth quarter
of 2007.

Equity in earnings of ventureln August 2006, the Company invested approxingak@l8 million for a 25%
interest in a newly formed venture. The venturestgd in a bankruptcy liquidation that will colleet existing
rental contracts and the liquidation of inventdfiie investment is expected to return to the Comjitanyormal
expected investment result over a two to three pedaod. The Compang’share of the income was $225,000 du
the year ended September 30, 2007. The Compamgteised approximately $6.6 million in cash diattibns
from the inception of the venture through Septen8@er2007. Subsequent to September 30, 2007, amaigth
December 6, 2007 an additional $350,000 has besives] by the Company.

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended September 30, 2007, genata@ministrative
expenses increased $7.2 million or 39.3% to $25llfomfrom $18.3 million for the year ended Septeen 30,
2006, and represented 48.2% of total expensesu@irg income taxes) for the year ended Septemhe2BI¥. The
increase in general and administrative expensegviagarily due to an increase in receivable senga@xpenses
during the year ended September 30, 2007, as ceapathe year ended September 30, 2006. The s&ira
receivable servicing expenses resulted from thetanhal increase in our average number of accaoygsired for
liquidation, primarily due to the Portfolio Purclegis the second quarter of 2007. A majority ofittereased costs
were from collection expenses, consulting and skgitg fees (further described below.), salariegrall taxes and
benefits, professional fees, telephone chargegrawel costs, as we are visiting our third partjjemtion agencies
and attorneys on a more frequent basis for finhacid operational audits.
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In December 2007, the Company negotiated an agreemit a third party servicer, to assist the Compi the
asset location, skiptracing efforts and ultimathly suing of debtors with respect to the PortfBlischase. The
agreement calls for a 3% percent fee on substhndithigross collections from the Portfolio Purcham the first
$500 million and 7% on substantially all collectsoinom the Portfolio Purchase in excess of $500anil This fee
will be charged from March 2007 and we believe thimngement will enhance our collection effortddAionally,
the Company will pay this third party servicer antidy fee of $275,000 per month for twenty four rtienfor its
consulting and skiptracing efforts in connectiothithe Portfolio Purchase. This fee began in May720

Interest expenseFor the year ended September 30, 2007, intexpsise increased to $18.2 million from
$4.6 million during the year ended September 3062@nd represented 34.6% of total expenses (erduicome
taxes) for the year ended September 30, 2007.1idnedase was due to an increase in average outstpindirowing
under our line of credit and our new $227 millioacRivables Financing Agreement during the year@nde
September 30, 2007, as compared to the averagamditsy borrowings during the year ended Septerd®eP006,
coupled with higher interest rates during the yarated September 30, 2007. The average interegesatieiding
unused credit line fees) for the year ended Sepe®, 2007 was 7.34% as compared to 6.97% dunmgedar
ended September 30, 2006. The average outstandingiings increased from $63.2 million to $241.liom for
the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2007, teghecThe increase in borrowings was due to ti@éase in
acquisitions of consumer receivables acquiredifoidation during the year ended September 30, 2887
compared to the year ended September 30, 2006.

Impairments. Impairments of $9.1 million were recorded by @ampany during the year ended Septembe
2007 as compared to $2.2 million for the year erSiegtember 30, 2006, and represented 17.2% ofebgpainses
(excluding income taxes) for the year ended Septer80, 2007. Impairments were taken on eleven gt
during the year ended 2007 including nine portlinthe fourth quarter of 2007. As relative cdilees with
respect to our expectations on these portfoliogwleteriorating in the fourth quarter, and thisedetation was
confirmed by our third party collection agencies attorneys, we believed that impairment chargeaie
necessary.

Net income. For the year ended September 30, 2007, net incooneased $6.5 million, or 14.2% to
$52.3 million from $45.8 million for the year end8dptember 30, 2006. Net income per share foréhe gnded
September 30, 2007 increased $0.43 per dilutec sbri 3.7% to $3.56 per diluted share, from $pd3diluted
share for the year ended September 30, 2006.

Year Ended September 30, 2006 Compared to the ¥Eealed September 30, 2005

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2006, finarmmerie increased $31.5 million or 45.4% to
$101.0 million from $69.5 million for the year emd8eptember 30, 2005. The increase in finance ircoas
primarily due to an increase in finance income edron consumer receivables acquired for liquidatigrich
resulted from an increase in the average outstgratinounts acquired for liquidation during the disgear ended
September 30, 2006, as compared to the same a@omeriod, coupled with the effect of increaseddg on certai
portfolios. For the fiscal year ended Septembe2806, we acquired receivables at a cost of $20@lbn as
compared to $126.0 million for the year ended Sapt 30, 2005. For the fiscal year ended SepteBMe2006,
we had an average of $215.0 million in consumegivables acquired for liquidation as compared 634 million
for the year ended September 30, 2005, a 34.8%aser Finance income recognized from collectiopesented
by account sales was $32.0 million and $24.9 nmilfiar the years ended September 30, 2006 and 28§ectively
while collections represented by account salesedsed by 15.0%, or $9.7 million from $64.7 million
$55.0 million. This decrease is primarily due te #ales of certain portfolios purchased in 2004 Wwigher rates of
return primarily recognized in 2006.

Adjustments to accretable yields on certain pddfolvere made based on available information, a@sedh on
improved liquidation rates attained and forecasbeloe attained by our third party collection agesand attorneys.
Management believes the anticipated collectionthese portfolios to be in excess of our originajgctions. As wi
believe these improved liquidation rates will cont, we adjusted our accretable yields by $44.BomiWhich
impacted revenue this year and will impact reveindfature years as well. Income recognized fronlyfamortized
portfolios (zero based revenue) was $4.4 milliod $8.8 million for the years ended September 3062{hd 2005,
respectively. The decrease was due primarily teséhe of fully amortized pools during 2005.
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In 2004 the Company decided to increase its utibpeof the legal process to increase collectidiss strategy
has proven to be effective to date, as we contiowsilize this strategy. The commissions and feesociated with
gross collections from our thindarty collection agencies and attorneys were apprabely $105.7 million, or 33.0'
of gross collections, in the fiscal year ended Sabier 30, 2006, as compared to $49.9 million, 08%20f gross
collections in the prior year. As we continue toghase portfolios and utilize our third party cotlen agencies and
attorney networks, we anticipate these costs igifl;however the contingency fees should stabhitizee range of
30% to 33% of gross collections based upon theeaotimix of portfolios.

Other income. Other income of $405,000 for the year ended Seipte 30, 2006 includes service fee income
generated by VATIV and interest income from bankd ather loan instruments.

Equity in earnings of ventureln August 2006 the Company invested approxima$@ly million for a 25%
interest in a newly formed venture. The venturested in a bankruptcy liquidation that will colleet existing
rental contracts and the liquidation of inventdfiie investment is expected to return to the Comjitanyormal
expected investment results over a two to three yedod. The Compang’share of the income of $550,000 in 2
is primarily due to sales of the higher valued imeey early in the venture’s life. The Company lieed
approximately $2.4 million through September 3Q& cash distributions from the venture and aditazhal
$1.8 million through November 30, 2006 as returhissanvestment.

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended September 30, 2006, genata@ministrative
expenses increased $3.0 million or 19.1% to $18ll®mfrom $15.3 million for the year ended Septeen 30,
2005. The increase was primarily due to an incr@aiee administrative costs associated with th@@increase in
the accounts acquired for liquidation. The increaagbe administrative expenses included increasedia costs,
technology costs, salaries, and related benefiddegsional fees, telephone charges and rent.

Interest Expense.For the year ended September 30, 2006, intexpsise increased $2.7 million or 150.5% to
$4.6 million from $1.9 million for the year ended@ember 30, 2005. The increase was primarily duke increas
in the average outstanding borrowings under owr dificredit during the year ended September 306,286
compared to the same prior year period. The avayatganding balance during the year ended Septeddh@006
was $63.2 million as compared to $34.3 milliontfoe period ended September 30, 2005. Also, theagednterest
rate for the year, excluding unused credit lines féecreased to 6.97% from 5.17% in 2005

Net income. For the year ended September 30, 2006, net inawcneased $14.8 million or 47.7% to
$45.8 million from $31.0 million for the year end8dptember 30, 2005. Net income per share foréhe gnded
September 30, 2006 increased $0.98 per dilutee shat5.6% to $3.13 per diluted share from $2.Ixdpeted
share for the year ended September 30, 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of cash from operations inclemlkections on the receivable portfolios that veerdn
acquired. Our primary uses of cash include ourtpases of consumer receivable portfolios. We rayificantly
upon our lenders to provide the funds necessarthéopurchase of consumer and commercial accoeotsvable
portfolios. As of September 30, 2007, we had a $hilbon line of credit for portfolio purchases, thian
expandable feature which allows the Company thityaln increase the line to $225 million with camd of the
banks. As of September 30, 2007, there was a $MilliGn outstanding balance under this facilitythough we
are within the borrowing limits of this facilityhére are certain restrictions in place with regardollateralization
whereby the Company may be limited in its abil@ybbrrow funds to purchase additional portfolios. @arch 30,
2007 the Company signed the Third Amendment tothoumended and Restated Loan Agreement (the “Credit
Agreement”) with a consortium of banks that amenckadiain terms of the Credit Agreement, wherebypidies
agreed to a Temporary Overadvance of $16 milliopetoeduced to zero on or before May 17, 2007d(tlit@n, the
parties agreed to an increase in interest raled BOR plus 275 basis points for LIBOR loans, anrgase from
175 basis points. The rate is subject to adjustmacih quarter upon delivery of results that evidemaeed for an
adjustment. As of May 7, 2007, the Temporary Ovesade was approximately $12 million. On May 10, 20be
Company signed the Fourth Amendment to the Creglie@ment whereby the parties agreed to reviseicdetans
of the agreement which eliminated the Temporaryr@eance provision. On June 26, 2007 the Compamedith:
Fifth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restateth Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with a

31




Table of Contents

consortium of banks that amended certain termBeofredit Agreement whereby the parties agreedrtbdr
amend the definition of the Borrowing Base andéase the advance rates on portfolio purchasesiatiaive
Company more borrowing availability. On Decembe2@)7, the Company signed the Sixth Amendmenteo th
Fourth Amended and Restated Loan Agreement (thediCAgreement”) with a consortium of banks that
temporarily increases the total revolving loan catrmant from $175,000,000 to $185,000,000. The iaseeof
$10,000,000 is required to be repaid by Februar2008. In the event the increase is not repaiBiddyruary 29,
2008, the then outstanding portion of the tempoiseyease shall be repaid over a six month pebadling the first
quarter of fiscal 2008, we made purchases totdiB®)4 million, which put us close to the upper tiofi our credit
line. The increase will enable us to make morefplotacquisitions as the opportunity arises.

In March 2007, Palisades Acquisition XVI, LLC (“Faldes XVI”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiarfitbe
Company purchased a portfolio of approximately $6lléon in face value receivables for a purchasegof
$300 million plus 20% of net payments after we werd 50% of the purchase price plus our cost ofisuThe
portfolio is made up of predominantly credit caot@unts and includes accounts in collection litmaand accoun
as to which the sellers have been awarded judgnaedtether traditional charge-offs. The Company padeposit
of $75 million, fully using its existing credit fdity, as modified in February 2007.

The remaining $225 million was paid on March 5, 206y borrowing approximately $227 million (inclusiof
transaction costs) under a new Receivables Fingragmeement entered into by Palisades XVI with goma
financial institution as the funding source, andgists of debt with full recourse only to Palisad&8, bearing an
interest rate of approximately 170 basis points @VBOR. The term of the agreement is three yedllsproceeds
received as a result of the net collections fromm plortfolio are applied to interest and principthe underlying
loan. The Company made certain representationsvan@nties to the lender to support the transaciibe
portfolio is serviced by Palisades Collection, Lla0wholly own subsidiary of the Company, which kagaged a
subservicer for the portfolio. As of September 3007, there was a $184.8 million outstanding baanwer this
facility.

As of September 30, 2007, our cash and cash eguigallecreased $3.3 million to $4.5 million from
$7.8 million at September 30, 2006. The decreasash and cash equivalents during the year endatér8ber 30,
2007, was due to an increase in cash flows uset/@sting activities primarily due to the increas@urchases of
consumer receivables acquired for liquidation, ec&d dividend paid and higher interest paymerffsebby an
increase in cash provided by operating activities t primarily an increase in net income for tearyand an
increase in cash provided by financing activitm@énarily due to the increase in borrowings undieed of credit
during the year ended September 30, 2007, as cechpathe year 2006.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $B8ilion during the year ended September 30, 2007,
compared to net cash provided by operating acwitif $48.9 million during the year ended Septer8e2006.
The increase in net cash provided by operatingitie8 was primarily due to the increase in nebime, an increase
in interest payable as a result of higher borrowjmaffset a decrease in income taxes payable aimterase in
amounts due from third party collection agencies atorneys, and an increase in deferred inconestaxet cash
used in investing activities was $291.2 millionidgrthe year ended September 30, 2007, comparneet twash used
in investing activities of $97.4 million during tlyear ended September 30, 2006. The increase tasbtused in
investing activities was primarily due to an in@ean the purchase of accounts acquired for ligigdaincluding
the Portfolio Purchase of $6.9 billion of face valtonsumer receivables at a cost of approxima@d@ $nillion. Ne
cash provided by financing activities was $232.8iom during the year ended September 30, 200¢pagared to
cash provided by financing activities of $52.3 moill during the year ended September 30, 2006. Atrease in net
cash provided by financing activities was primadlye to an increase in borrowings under our lifegedit and ou
new Receivable Financing Agreement to finance tfélio Purchase. In addition, there was $5.7 ionillof cash
designated as restricted cash at September 30, 2Zh6ie was no restricted cash at the end of tioe year.

As of September 30, 2007, Palisade XVI, the Comisandirect wholly-owned subsidiary, was requited
remit and additional $13.1 million to its lenderarder to be in compliance under the Receivablarkimg
Agreement. The Company facilitated the ability afifades XVI to make this payment by borrowing $1r8illion
under its current revolving credit facility and sing another of its subsidiaries to purchase dgodf the
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Portfolio Purchase from Palisade XVI at a pricé®8.1 million prior to the measurement date unberReceivable
Financing Agreement.

Our cash requirements have been and will contiadeetsignificant. We depend on external financegaquirt
consumer receivables. During the year ended Segtedth 2007, we acquired consumer receivable pa$fat a
cost of approximately $440.9 million. These acdiass were financed with our cash flows from opiegactivities
and primarily with our existing and new credit féz#s. As we are approaching the upper limit of barrowing
availability, we may seek additional financing farther growth.

The Receivable Financing Agreement required traptimcipal amount thereunder be reduced undehedsie
tied to projected collections on the Portfolio fhase. As we fell behind the minimum required arzation
schedule, principally as a result of sales of ant®that were built into that schedule, and singeently we believe
that our strategy of suing debtors will ultimatedalize more than the sales of these accounts wwaltlice, the
Company and its lender entered into an amendmeéad dxecember 27, 2007. The amendment allows usegrea
flexibility to use our strategy and substantiallyrénates any scheduled sales of accounts usdtkioriginal
expectations. Additionally, the amendment effedyivextends the repayment schedule from 25 monti84 tmonths
While we believe that we will be able to satisfe tiew collection schedule, no assurances can ke gnat
collections will not slow further, notwithstandiogir recent engagement of a sub-servicer to asglstallection of
this Portfolio Purchase, as described in Item 7na&¢@ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialditoon and
Results of Operations. Such slowing of collectioasld cause us to fall behind the schedule andutteda our
obligations under the amended Receivable Finankgrgement.

We anticipate the funds available under our curcesdit facility and cash from operations will héfgient to
satisfy our estimated cash requirements for at thasnext 12 months. If for any reason our avédaash otherwis
proves to be insufficient to fund operations (beeaof future changes in the industry, general exdnconditions,
unanticipated increases in expenses, or otherrictee may be required to seek additional funding.

From time to time, we evaluate potential acquisgiof related businesses but we may not be aldenplete
any acquisitions on favorable terms or at all. Wayroonsider possible acquisitions of, or investsént
complementary businesses. Any such possible atiquisior investments may be material and may requsrto
incur a significant amount of debt or issue a sigant amount of equity securities. Further, angibass that we
acquire or invest in will likely have its own caglineeds, which may be significant, and which wg tmacalled
upon to satisfy.

The following table shows the changes in finanoeirables, including amounts paid to acquire nertfpiios:

Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Balance at beginning of peri $257.2 $172.7 $146.1 $105.6 $ 36.1
Acquisitions of finance receivables, net of buybs 440.¢ 200.2 126.C 103.7 115.¢
Cash collections from debtors applied to principg (114.9 (90.9) (59.6) (37.6) (27.9)
Cash collections represented by account saleseajiali

principal(1) (29.7) (23.0) (39.9) (25.9) (18.2)
Impairment/Portfolio writedow! (9.0 (2.2 — (0.3 (0.5)
Balance at end of peric $545.¢ $257.c $172.7 $146.1 $105.¢

(1) Cash collections applied to principal consistsasitcollections less income recognized on finaaceivables
plus amounts received by us from the sale of corsuateivable portfolios to third partie
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Supplementary Information on Consumer Receivabtefdbios:

Portfolio Purchases

Year Ended September 30

2007 2006 2005
(In millions)
Aggregate Purchase Pri $ 440.¢ $ 200z $ 126.C
Aggregate Portfolio Face Amou 10,891.¢ 5,194.( 3,445.;

The prices we pay for our consumer receivable plio are dependent on many criteria includingabe of
the portfolio, the number of third party collectiagencies and attorneys that have been involvétkigollection
process and the geographical distribution of théfgla. When we pay higher prices for portfoliohieh are
performing or fresher, we believe it is not at faerifice of our expected returns. Price fluctuagiéor portfolio
purchases from quarter to quarter or year over gagamdicative of the overall mix of the typespofitfolios we are

purchasing.
Schedule of Portfolios by Income Recognition Categp
September 30, 2007  September 30, 2006  September 30, 2005
Cost Interest Cost Interest Cost Interest
Recovery Method Recovery Method Recovery Method
Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios  Portfolios Portfolios
(In millions)
Original Purchase Price (at period e $ 101.1%$1,045.3% 50.e$ 655.0% 49.2% 454¢
Cumulative Aggregate Managed Portfolios (at period
end) 3,961.! 25,464. 2,205.( 16,332.{ 2,168.. 11,339.!
Receivable Carrying Value (at period el 32.C 513.¢ 11 256.3 0.1 172.€
Finance Income Earned (for the respective pel 2.2 136.2 3.4 97.€ 54 64.1
Total Cash Flows (for the respective peri 21.2 260.¢ 3.7 210.¢ 6.6 162.:

The original purchase price reflects what we paidlie receivables from 1998 through the end oféispectiv
period. The cumulative aggregate managed porthi@iance is the original aggregate amount owed &ytrower:
at the end of the respective period. Additionaledénces between year to year period end balanagsesult from
the transfer of portfolios between the interesthndtand the cost recovery method. We purchase omrsu
receivables at substantial discounts from the &weunt. We record finance income on our receivalheter either
the cost recovery or interest method. The receévabirying value represents the current basiseémebeivables
after collections and amortization of the origipate.

Collections Represented by Account Sales

Collections
Represented Finance
By account Income
Year Sales Recognized
2007 $54,193,00 $25,164,00
2006 55,035,00 32,041,00
2005 64,731,00 24,918,00
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Portfolio Performance (1)

The following table summarizes our historical politi purchase price and cash collections on acdrasis
portfolios on an annual vintage basis since Oct@b@001 through September 30, 2007.

Purchase
Period

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007

Total
Net Cash Estimated
Collections Estimated Total Collections
Purchase Including Remaining Estimated as a Percentage
Price(2) Cash Sales(3 Collections(4) Collections(5)  of Purchase Prict
$ 65,120,000 $ 95,340,00 — 95,340,00 14€%
36,557,00 52,346,00 — 52,346,00 142%
115,626,00 195,051,00 3,535,000 198,586,00 172%
103,743,00 160,767,00 1,210,000 161,977,00 15€%
126,023,00 155,789,00 59,267,000 215,056,00 171%
200,237,00 149,368,00 160,913,00 310,281,00 155%
384,850,00 69,409,00 460,205,00 529,614,00 13&%

(1) Total collections do not represent full collectimfshe Company with respect to this or any ottesan
(2) Purchase price refers to the cash paid to a gellezquire a portfolio less the purchase pricereéa by a

seller due to the return of n-compliant accounts (also defined as-backs).

(3) Cash collections include: net collections from third-party collection agencies and attorneys,emibns
from our ir-house efforts and collections represented by adsales

(4) Does not include estimated collections from poitfothat are zero bas
(5) Total estimated collections refers to the actuakash collections, including cash sales, plusreggd

remaining collections

We do not anticipate collecting the majority of fhechased principal amounts. Accordingly, theed#hce
between the carrying value of the portfolios areldghoss receivables is not indicative of futurafice income from
these accounts acquired for liquidation. Since welpased these accounts at significant discourgtsnticipate

collecting only a portion of the face amounts.

For the year ended September 30, 2007, we recabfimnce income of $2.2 million under the cosiorary
method because we collected $2.2 million in exoésair purchase price on certain of these portfolin addition,
we earned $136.2 million of finance income underitiierest method based on actuarial computatidvshywin
turn, are based on actual collections during thiesgeand on what we project to collect in futureipds. During the
year ended September 30, 2007, we purchased pastfeith an aggregate purchase price of $440.9anilvith a
face value (gross contracted amount) of $10.%illi

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stansl&wolard (“FASB”) issued FASB Statement No. 141
(revised 2007)Business Combinatioff§~FASB Statement No. 141R").FASB Statement No, tedlaces FASB
Statement No. 144 Business Combinatiof$&~ASB Statement No. 141") The objective of FASEt8ment
No. 141R, is to improve the relevance, represamatifaithfulness, and comparability of the infotioa that &
reporting entity provides in its financial repoatisout a business combination and its effects. Toraplish that, this
Statement establishes principles and requirementsoiw the acquirer:

a. recognizes and measures in its financial statestie identifiable assets acquired, the liabaiti
assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in theliaeeg

b. recognizes and measures the goodwill acquirdakitbusiness combination or a gain from a bargain

purchase

c. determines what information to disclose to egaisiers of the financial statements to evaluatadhgre
and financial effects of the business combination.
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FASB Statement No. 141R applies to all transact@rather events in which an entity (the acquicdtains
control of one or more businesses (the acquinec)uding those sometimes referred to as “true mietfge “merger:
of equals” and combinations achieved without thedfer of consideration, for example, by contrémhe or
through the lapse of minority veto rights. FASBt8taent No. 141R applies to all business entitreduding mutus
entities that previously used the pooling-of-inggsemethod of accounting for some business conibimatlt does
not apply to:

a. the formation of a joint venture
b. the acquisition of an asset or a group of agkatdoes not constitute a business
c. a combination between entities or businessesruwr@mmon control

d. a combination between not-for-profit organizas@r the acquisition of a for-profit business hyo&
for-profit organization.

FASB Statement No. 141R retains the guidance inB-&fatement No. 141 for identifying and recognizing
intangible assets separately from goodwill. FAS8t&hent No. 141R requires an acquirer to recoghzassets
acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-atiittg interest in the acquiree at the acquisititaite, measured at
their fair values at that date.

FASB Statement No. 141 R applies prospectivelyusiriess combinations for which the acquisition datn
or after the beginning of the first annual repagtperiod beginning on or after December 15, 2008eAtity may
not apply it before that date. Currently, the Comypdoes not anticipate FASB Statement No. 141Rhaille an
impact on the Company'’s financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB StatemenflBid@ —Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statement— an Amendment of ARB No..51FASB Statement No. 160”) A noncontrolling ingst,
sometimes called a minority interest, is the portié equity in a subsidiary not attributable, dtheor indirectly, to
a parent. The objective of FASB Statement No. $80 improve the relevance, comparability, andgdpanency of
the financial information that a reporting entityopides in its consolidated financial statement&stablishing
accounting and reporting standards that require:

« the ownership interests in subsidiaries held byiggpther than the parent be clearly identifiatieled, and
presented in the consolidated statement of finhpoisition within equity, but separate from thequatts

equity.
» the amount of consolidated net income attributabkfe parent and to the noncontrolling interestlbarly
identified and presented on the face of the codat#d statement of incornr

« changes in a parent’s ownership interest whilgtent retains its controlling financial interasits
subsidiary be accounted for consistently. A pasatnership interest in a subsidiary changes iptrent
purchases additional ownership interests in itsislidry or if the parent sells some of its owngpshterests
in its subsidiary. It also changes if the subsidi@acquires some of its ownership interests osthsidiary
issues additional ownership interests. All of thvaasactions are economically similar, and tha&&hent
requires that they be accounted for similarly, @ity transactions

« when a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retaimedantrolling equity investment in the former sulisiy
be initially measured at fair value. The gain agslon the deconsolidation of the subsidiary is nnegkusing
the fair value of any noncontrolling equity investmh rather than the carrying amount of that rethine
investment

* entities provide sufficient disclosures that clegadentify and distinguish between the interestthefparent
and the interests of the noncontrolling own

FASB Statement No. 160 applies to all entities grapare consolidated financial statements, exuoetstor-
profit organizations, but will affect only thosetities that have an outstanding noncontrollingriese¢ in one or mot
subsidiaries or that deconsolidate a subsidiary.

36




Table of Contents

FASB Statement No. 160 is effective for fiscal ywand interim periods within those fiscal yeaesjibning or
or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption isjtited.

FASB Statement No. 160 shall be applied prospdgtiag of the beginning of the fiscal year in whtbfs
Statement is initially applied, except for the gresition and disclosure requirements. The presentand
disclosure requirements shall be applied retrospaygtfor all periods presented. . Currently then@any does not
anticipate FASB Statement No. 160 will have an iotjpem the Company’s financial statements.

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standd&dard (“FASB”) issued FASB Statement No. 158e
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finardigabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 115, this Statement permits entities to choose to oreasany financial instruments and certain otheng at
fair value. The objective is to improve financiaporting by providing entities with the opportunitymitigate
volatility in reported earnings caused by measureigted assets and liabilities differently withbatving to apply
complex hedge accounting provisions. This Statensezxpected to expand the use of fair value measeint,
which is consistent with the Board'’s lotgrm measurement objectives for accounting fomfaia instruments. Th
Statement is effective for the Company’s fiscalrijbat begins October 1, 2008. The Company belidvwasthe
statement, when adopted, will not impact the Corgipan

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Actiog Bulletin No. 108Considering the Effects of Prior
Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatemen®uirent Year Financial Statemer{&AB 108). SAB 108
was issued in order to eliminate the diversityriagtice surrounding how public companies quantifgricial
statement misstatements. SAB 108 requires thattragis quantify errors using both a balance sre@income
statement approach and evaluate whether eitheoagipresults in a misstated amount that, wherekVant
guantitative and qualitative factors are considei®cthaterial. SAB 108 became effective for the @any in the
current fiscal year. Adoption had no material imtpatthe Company.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB StatemenflbB,Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Ple— an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,ntD632(RY“FASB
158"). FASB 158 improves financial reporting by uéing an employer to recognize the overfundedratasfunded
status of a defined benefit postretirement plahgothan a multiemployer plan) as an asset orliilm its
statement of financial position and to recognizangfes in that funded status in the year in whiehctianges occur
through comprehensive income of a business ei%B 158 also improves financial reporting by reong an
employer to measure the funded status of a plar thee date of its year-end statement of finang@adition, with
limited exceptions. FASB 158 was required to belengented by the end of our fiscal year 2007. Ad thine, the
Company does not sponsor a defined benefit plametbre, there is no impact on the Company witlarégo FASE
158.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB StatemenfLbl7,Fair Value MeasurementsThis Statement
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value in generally accepted accoungrigciples
(GAAP), and expands disclosures about fair valuasuements. This Statement applies under otheuating
pronouncements that require or permit fair valu@soeements, the Board having previously concludetddse
accounting pronouncements that fair value is thevamt measurement attribute. Accordingly, thig&tent does
not require any new fair value measurements. FABBeB ent No. 157 will be effective for our finarigtatements
issued for our fiscal year beginning October 1,200e do not expect the adoption of FASB Staterentl57 to
have a material impact on our financial reportiagg we are currently evaluating the impact, if ahg,adoption of
FASB Statement No. 157 will have on our disclogecuirements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation48,“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxesa#r
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1q®IN 48), which prescribes a recognition threshenid measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognitionl aneasurement of a tax position taken or expdotbé taken in a
tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on degseitmn, classification, interest and penaltiegamting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition. FINWiB be effective for our fiscal year beginning @ber 1, 2007. We
do not expect the adoption of FIN 48 to have a nat@npact on our financial reporting and disclasu
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Inflation:

We believe that inflation has not had a materigdaet on our results of operations for the yeargdnd
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Seasonality and Trends

Our management believes that our operations magrtee extent, be affected by high delinquency raneksby
lower recoveries on consumer receivables acquoetiquidation during or shortly following certaholiday period:
and during the summer months. In addition, on dooathe market for acquiring distressed receivabttess becom
more competitive thereby possibly diminishing olility to acquire such distressed receivablestaaetive prices
in such periods.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

We are exposed to various types of market riskénrtormal course of business, including the impéaiterest
rate changes and changes in corporate tax ratemtérial change in these rates could adverselgtafie operating
results and cash flows. At September 30, 2007$a@b million credit facility, all of which is varide rate debt, had
an outstanding balance of $141.7 million and owdReble Financing Agreement, all of which is vhharate deb
had an outstanding balance of $184.8 million . A2aSis-point increase in interest rates would liaseeased our
annual interest expense by approximately $600,@8@d on the average debt obligation outstandinggitie
fiscal year. We do not currently invest in derivatfinancial or commodity instruments.
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Item 8. Financial Statements And Supplementary Da

The Financial Statements of the Company, the Nb®to and the Report of Independent RegisterétddPu
Accounting Firm thereon required by this item appeahis report on the pages indicated in theofelhg index:

Index to Audited Financial Statements Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm F-2
Consolidated Balance She— September 30, 2007 and 2C F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operati— Years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and F-4
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol Equity— Years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl— Years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-7

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

a) Under the supervision and with the participattbour management, including our Chief Executiiéder
and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an euédueof the effectiveness of our disclosure corstienhd
procedures, as such term is defined under Rulel58a)- of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad (“the
Exchange Act”), as of the end of the period covdrgthis report. Based on this evaluation, our €Biecutive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concludévt our disclosure controls and procedures wereffettive as
of the end of the period covered by this Annual®epn Form 10-K because of the material weaknédssiesernal
control over financial reporting discussed below.

b) We maintain disclosure controls and procedurasdre designed to ensure that information requode
disclosed in our reports under the Exchange Aatdsrded, processed, summarized and reported withitime
periods specified in the Securities and Exchangar@ission’s rules and forms, and that such inforaomais
accumulated and communicated to our managemehiding our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finzaic
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisigrgarding required disclosures. Any controls aratedures, no
matter how well designed and operated, can pramidle reasonable assurance of achieving the desietlol
objectives. Our management, with the participatibour Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finandifficer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsiaind procedures as of September 30, 2007. Rgemdthat
evaluation and subject to the foregoing, our Chiedcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer condéd that our
disclosure controls and procedures were deficient.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or boration of deficiencies, that results in more tharemote
likelihood that a material misstatement of the adraw interim financial statements will not be peated or detecte
In connection with the preparation of our consdkdifinancial statements for the year ended Sepe® 2007,
the Company noted the following material weaknes#isasbecame evident to management:

1. The Company had insufficient controls and proces in place to ensure that information relatmglt
material arrangements critical to accounting arfelctiize review were available on a timely basiappropriate
financial and accounting personnel, and

2. The Company did not have effective policies pratedures in place to assess the Company’s liguidi
and compliance with debt covenants.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

There have been no changes in internal controlsfamancial reporting in the Company'’s fourth fiscaarter
of 2007.
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The Company intends to take a number of correctotmns to address the above mentioned material
weaknesses as promptly as practicable. These a@rerexpected to include the establishment ofvarsight
committee comprised of the Chief Financial Offiaed other key management personnel, and if aprtepri
members of the audit committee. This committee sgiliew all material transactions with a view tesering
complete, accurate and timely financial accounting related disclosure. In addition the Companyuntiertake a

review of its financial reporting processes withaartside consultant and adopt such other procedsresight be
necessary.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, inclodkd accompanying annual report on Form 10-K, that
Asta Funding, Inc. did not maintain effective imtercontrol over financial reporting as of Septenti@ 2007,
based on, criteria established in Internal Conmgrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS@%ta Funding, Inc. management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effecidss of internal
control over financial reporting. Our responsilyili$ to express an opinion on management's assessmnd an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s imaécontrol over financial reporting based on cudlit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBoa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control duaincial reporting, evaluating management’s assest, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectisené internal control, and performing such othecpdures as v
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdliat our audit provides a reasonable basisupbopinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Papeto the maintenance of records that, in redslerdetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the Company; (ii)yjate reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementa@cordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andrdwipts and expenditures of the Company are beaxdg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anredtdirs of the Company; and (iii) provide reasoaassurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the Compa assets thi
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or boration of control deficiencies, that results iorthan a
remote likelihood that a material misstatementhefannual or interim financial statements will hetprevented or
detected. The following material weaknesses haee mentified and included in management’s asseassaseof
September 30, 2007:

» The Company had insufficient controls and proceslimgplace to assess whether information critical t
accurate accounting and disclosure and for thetftereview of all material arrangements were
available on a timely basis to appropriate finahataounting personnel. Specifically, this control
deficiency permitted the following

A material error in accounting for an arrangemeitha third-party collection agency for
commissions and fees resulting in an understateofehese costs.

Critical analysis of the timing and amount of célslvs to be generated by certain portfolios wert
sufficiently accurate to determine (i) the comphetes of the forecasted cash flows included in
projections; and (ii) the sufficiency and approfeiess of related disclosures.

As a result of this deficiency, it was necessannianagement to incorporate significant additiateth
that was obtained subsequent to the preparatitmeafinitial projections and disclosure
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» The Company did not have effective policies anadedures in place to assess and disclose the
Company’s liquidity and compliance with debt covetsaAs a result of this deficiency, the Company
did not previously amend or disclose the need terahtertain debt covenants to facilitate compliance
with existing agreement

The deficiencies noted above resulted in an awjlisament to the Compars/September 30, 2007 consolid:
financial statements.

These material weaknesses were considered in dategithe nature, timing, and extent of audit tegiplied
in our audit of the September 30, 2007 consolidéitethcial statements, and this report does netcafiur report
dated December 27, 2007 which expressed an unigdatipinion on those financial statements.

In our opinion, managemestassessment that Asta Funding, Inc. did not niaieféective internal control ov
financial reporting as of September 30, 2007, iityfatated, in all material respects, based oa,GDSO criteria.
Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of thaterial weaknesses described above on the achéenerhthe
objectives of the control criteria, Asta Fundingg.lhas not maintained effective internal contr@rdiinancial
reporting as of September 30, 2007, based on tHeGCEiteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance shedistaf Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Septerd®e2007 and
2006, and the related consolidated statementsarhtipns, stockholders’ equity, and cash flowsefach of the
years in the thre-year period ended September 30, 2007.

/sl Eisner LLP
EISNER LLP

New York, New York
December 27, 2007
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Item 9B. Other Information.
None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goventce.

Information contained under the caption “Directdsecutive Officers, and Corporate Governance in ou
definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Guiasion on or before January 28, 2008, is incotgoray
reference in response to this Iltem 10.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for our Senicarkéial Officers that is incorporated into this FattK in
Exhibit 14.1.

Item 11. Executive Compensatior

Information contained under the caption “ExecutB@mnpensationfn our definitive Proxy Statement to be fi
with the Commission on or before January 28, 2@0Bdorporated by reference in response to this [té.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahinagement and Related Stockholder Matte

Information contained under the caption “Securityr@rship of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managefnen
in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed witle Commission on or before January 28, 2008 wrpurated
herein by reference in response to this Item 12.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

Information contained under the caption “Certairiaenships and Related Transactions” in our dgfiei
Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commissioroobefore January 28, 2008 is incorporated by esfes in
response to this Item 13.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

Information contained under the caption “Principatounting Fees and Services” in our definitivex§ro
Statement to be filed with the Commission on oobeflanuary 28, 2008 is incorporated by referemcesponse to
this Item 14.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

Exhib

its designated by the symbol * are filed wilils Annual Report on Form 10-K. All exhibits nat s

designated are incorporated by reference to a filiieg as indicated.

Exhib

its designated by the symbol T are managenuaritacts or compensatory plans or arrangementsita

required to be filed with this report pursuanthistitem 15.

The Company undertakes to furnish to any stockm@deequesting a copy of any of the following éxisi
upon payment to us of the reasonable costs incbyreds in furnishing any such exhibit.

(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport

1. Financial Statements — See Index to Consolidateancial Statements in Part Il, Item 8
2. Exhibits

Exhibit

Number
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation.(1

3.2
3.3
101
10.2
10.3
104

105
10.6
10.7
10.8
109
1C0.10
1011
10.12
10.13
1C0.14
10.15
141
21.1
231
311

31.2

Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation|

By laws.(2)

Asta Funding, Inc 1995 Stock Option Plan as Ame(itdc

Asta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan(

Asta Funding, Inc. Equity Compensation Plan(

Third Amended and Restated Loan and Security Ages¢aiated May 11, 2004, between the Company
and Israel Discount Bank of NY/(!

Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Aggaedated July 10, 2006, between the Company
and Israel Discount Bank of NY(

Lease agreement between the Company and 210 SAdsarue LLC dated July 29, 2005(

Receivables Finance Agreement dated March 2, 266vden Company and the Bank of Montreal(
Subservicing Agreement between the Company an8ubservicer dated March 2, 2007(.

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated February 5, PIX

Third Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restiatesh and Security Agreement dated March 30,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount B&)

Fourth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restatad and Security Agreement dated May 10,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount Ba&)

Fifth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restateth and Security Agreement dated June 27,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount Bah)

First Amendment to the Receivables Finance Agreéneied July 1, 2007 between the Company and
Bank of Montreal(15

Sixth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restabarh and Security Agreement dated December 4,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount B#)

Second Amendment to the Receivables Financing Aggeedated December 27, 20(

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

Subsidiaries of the Company(

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive O#ic Gary Stern, pursuant to Section 302 of the Swb-
Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Offic Mitchell Cohen, pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.*
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Exhibit
Number

32.1 Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Executivéfi€er, Gary Stern, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.*

32.2 Certification of the Registrant’s Chief FinancidffiCer, Mitchell Cohen, pursuant to Section 90Goé
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.*

(1) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2
(File No. 3:-97212).

(2) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the yeadeth
September 30, 199

(3) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the #ére
months ended March 31, 20(

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to Astadiing’s Annual Report on form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astiadiin¢’s Current Report oForm &K filed May 19, 2004
(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiin¢’'s Current Report oForm ¢&-K filed March 3, 200¢
(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiin¢’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K filed July 12, 2006

(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astading’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2,
2005.

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to Astiadiing’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadet
September 30, 200

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the ére
months ended March 31, 20(

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiing’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Februfiry
2007

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astading’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Ehre
Months Ended March 31, 20!

(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Astading’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Ehre
Months Ended March 31, 20!

(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astading’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the &hre
Months Ended June 30, 20

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astading’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Ehre
Months Ended June 30, 20(

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiing’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Decemb@r
2007

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Astading’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Ehre
Months Ended March 31, 20t
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgjegeAct, the Registrant caused this report to tpeesi on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

By: /s/ Gary Ster

Gary Stern
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: December 28, 2007

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostiheen signed below by the following persons oraliet
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated:

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary Stern President, Chief Executive Officer and December 28, 20(
/sl Mitchell Cohen Chief Financial Officer December 28, 20(
Mitchell Cohen Principal Financial and Accounting

Officer

/sl Arthur Stern Chairman of the Board and Executive December 28, 20(
Arthur Stern Vice President
/s/ Herman Badillo Director December 28, 20(
Herman Badillc
/s/ Edward Celano Director December 28, 20(
Edward Celant
/sl Harvey Leibowitz Director December 28, 20(

Harvey Leibowitz

/s/ David Slackman Director December 28, 20(
David Slackmar

/s/ Alan Rivera Director December 28, 20(
Alan Rivera
/sl Louis A. Piccolo Director December 28, 20(

Louis A. Piccola
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaried as
September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related ¢datal statements of operations, stockholders’tgaguid cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year gkdnded September 30, 2007. These consolidatatcfala
statements are the responsibility of the Compamgdsagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these
consolidated financial statements based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighargio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements enumeratsale present fairly, in all material respects, th
consolidated financial position of Asta Funding;.las of September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the lidaisal result
of their operations and their consolidated casWwsléor each of the years in the three-year periated
September 30, 2007, in conformity with accountinggples generally accepted in the United StafeSnoerica.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the effectiveness of Asta Funding,’s internal control over financial reporting as ep&mber 3(
2007, based on criteria established in Internalt@bintegrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and eport dated December 27, 2007 expressed an urigdalif
opinion on management’s assessment of, and ansedepinion on the effectiveness of internal conradr
financial reporting.

/sl Eisner LLP
EISNER LLP

New York, New York
December 27, 2007
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30

2007 2006
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel $ 4,525,000 $ 7,826,00
Restricted cas 5,694,001
Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation @trealizable value 545,623,00 257,275,00
Due from third party collection agencies and attys 4,909,001 3,062,001
Investment in ventur 2,040,001 5,965,001
Furniture and equipment (net of accumulated deatieci of $2,048,000 in 2007

and $1,769,000 in 200 793,00( 1,101,001
Deferred income taxe 12,349,00 7,577,001
Other asset 4,323,001 5,034,00I

$580,256,00  $287,840,00
LIABILITIES

Advances under lines of crei $326,466,00 $ 82,811,00
Other liabilities 7,537,00! 4,338,001
Dividends payabli 557,00( 6,052,001
Income taxes payab 8,161,00! 10,377,00

Total liabilities 342,721,00 103,578,00
Commitments and contingenci
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 5,00),sued — none Common

stock, $.01 par value, authorized 30,000,000 sh&®sed and outstanding

13,918,158 shares in 2007 and 13,755,157 in 139,00( 138,00(
Additional paic-in capital 65,030,00 61,803,00
Retained earning 172,366,00 122,321,00

Total stockholder equity 237,535,00 184,262,00

$580,256,00  $287,840,00

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement
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Revenues

Finance incom

Other income

Equity in earnings of ventul

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

General and administrative expen

Interest expens

Impairments

Income before provision for income tay

Provision for income taxe

Net income

Basic net income per shari
Diluted net income per share
Weighted average shares:

Basic
Diluted

Year Ended September 30

2007 2006 2005
$138,356,00 $101,024,00  $69,479,00
2,181,00 405,00(
225,001 550,00
140,762,00 101,979,00 _69,479,00
25450,00  18,268,00  15,340,00
18,246,00 4,641,000  1,853,00
9,097,001 2,245,001
52,793,00 _ 25154,00 _17,193,00
87,969,00  76,82500  52,286,00
35,703,00 _ 31,060,00  21,290,00
$ 52,266,00 $ 45,765,00  $30,996,00
$ 37¢ % 336 $ 2.2¢
$ 356 $ 315 $ 2.1F
13,807,83  13,637,40  13,54358
14,691,86 1461514  14,410,27

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Additional
Common Stock Paid-in Retained
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total

Balance, September 30, 20C 13,432,59. $134,00( $59,184,00 $ 55,148,000 $114,466,00
Exercise of option 162,73( 2,00¢ 1,417,001 1,419,00!
Tax benefit arising from exercise of nhon

qualified stock option 197,00( 197,00(
Dividends (1,901,00)  (1,901,00i)
Net income 30,996,00 30,996,00
Balance, September 30, 20C 13,595,32 136,00( 60,798,00 84,243,000 145,177,00
Exercise of option 159,83: 2,00( 870,00( 872,00(
Tax benefit arising from exercise of non

qualified stock option 30,00( 30,00(¢
Dividends (7,687,00) (7,687,00i)
Compensation expen 105,00 105,00(
Net income 45,765,001 45,765,00
Balance, September 30, 20C 13,755,415 138,00( 61,803,00 122,321,00 184,262,00
Exercise of option 95,001 1,00(C 1,328,001 1,329,00!
Restricted stock grante 68,00(
Stock based compensation expe 1,140,001 1,140,001
Tax benefit arising from exercise of non-

qualified stock options and vesting of

restricted stocl 759,00( 759,00(
Dividends (2,221,00) (2,221,00i)
Net income 52,266,00 52,266,00
Balance, September 30, 20C 13,918,15 $139,00( $65,030,00 $172,366,00 $237,535,00

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired €pridiation
Stock based compensati

Changes in
Due from third party collection agencies and aiys
Other asset
Income taxes payab
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of consumer receivables acquired fordajian

Year Ended September 30

2007 2006 2005
$ 52,266,00 $ 4576500 $ 30,996,00
841,00 575,001 485,001
(4,772,000 (7,730,00) 109,00
9,097,001 2,245,001
1,140,001 105,00
(1,847,001 (1,637,00) (588,001)
(2,324,000) (191,00() 622,00(
(2,216,001 9,134,001 (182,000)
3,390,001 632,001 615,001
55,575,00 48,898,00 32,057,00

(440,895,00)

Principal payments received from collection of aamer receivables

acquired for liquidatior

Principal payments received from collections repnésd by sales of

consumer receivables acquired for liquidal
Investment in ventur
Cash distribution received from ventt
Purchase of other investme
Collections on other investmer
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Capital expenditure
Deposit on receivable purche
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings (repayments) under lines of credit,
Change in restricted ca
Dividends paic
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Tax benefit arising from exercise of r-qualified stock option
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivake
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye:

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for
Interest

Income taxe:

(200,237,00)

(113,537,00)

114,421,00 90,450,00 59,648,00
29,029,00 22,994,00 39,813,00
(7,810,00)
3,925,001 1,845,001
(5,777,00) (2,862,00)
8,251,001
(1,406,00)  (13,521,00)
(163,000) (423,00() (685,001)
7,288,001
(291,209,00) _ (97,449,00) _ (20,994,00)
243,655,00 53,526,00 (10,070,00)
(5,694,001)
(7,716,001 (2,110,00) (1,894,001
1,329,001 872,00( 1,419,00
759,00( 30,00( 197,00
232,333,00 52,318,00 (10,348,00)
(3,301,001) 3,767,001 715,00(
7,826,001 4,059,001 3,344,001
$ 4525000 $ 7,826,000 $ 4,059,00
$ 16,64400 $ 4,766,00 $ 1,927,00
$ 4193200 $ 2953500 $ 21,244,00

See notes to consolidated financial statements

F-6




Table of Contents

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2007 and 2006

NoTE A —THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[1] The Company:

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly ownagbsidiaries, (the “Company”) is engaged in thdrmass of
purchasing, managing for its own account and senyidistressed consumer receivables, includinggethoff
receivables, semi-performing receivables and perifug receivables. Chargeff receivables are accounts that h
been written-off by the originators and may haverbpreviously serviced by collection agencies. Sganforming
receivables — accounts where the debtor is cugr@mdlking partial or irregular monthly payments, the accounts
may have been written-off by the originators. Pemiing receivables are accounts where the debtoaléng
regular monthly payments that may or may not haentdelinquent in the past. Distressed consumeiviades ar
the unpaid debts of individuals to banks, finanoepanies and other credit providers. A large portibthe
Company’s distressed consumer receivables are Mestl(R), Visa(R), other credit card accounts and
telecommunication accounts which were charged-pthie issuers for non-payment. The Company acqthese
portfolios at substantial discounts from their faadues. The discounts are based on the chardt®iissuer,
account size, debtor location and age of debfh@iinderlying accounts of each portfolio.

[2] Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include tumants of the Company and its wholly owned subsiels.
The Company’s investment in a venture, represeraiff% interest, is accounted for using the equitthod. All
significant intercompany balances and transacti@ve been eliminated in consolidation.

[3] Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:

The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith a maturity of three months or less at thedxt
purchase to be cash equivalents.

The Company maintains cash balances in variousdiahinstitutions. Management periodically evatsathe
creditworthiness of such institutions. Cash balanmay, from time to time, exceed FDIC limits.

On February 5, 2007, Palisades Acquisition XV, LlaGyholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, enténtal
a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Portfolio Rise\greement”) with Great Seneca Financial Cotfmraand
other affiliates (collectively, the “Sellers”), uadwhich we agreed to acquire a portfolio of apprately
$6.9 billion in face value receivables (the “PdlitidPurchase”) for a purchase price of $300 millguas 20% of any
future Net Payments (as defined in the PortfolioccRase Agreement) received by the Company afteCtmepany
has received Net Payments equal to 150% of théhpaecprice plus our cost of funds. The PortfoliccRase (now
owned by Palisades Acquisition XVI, LLC (“Palisad€gl”)) predominantly consists of credit card acotsiand
includes some accounts in collection litigation aedounts as to which the Sellers have been awgudgchents.
The transaction was consummated on March 5, 20@Tin&nce this purchase, the Company entered into a
Receivables Financing Agreement with a major fimariastitution as the funding source, consistifiglebt with
full recourse only to Palisades XVI, and bearindgrdarest rate which approximates 170 basis paiws LIBOR.
The term of the agreement is three years. All agsePalisades XVI, principally the Portfolio, grledged to secure
such borrowing.

As part of the Receivables Financing Agreemenpralteeds received as a result of the net collexfimm the
Portfolio Purchase are to be applied to interedtmincipal of the underlying loan. The restrictah at
September 30, 2007 represents cash on hand desigodie paid to our lender on the tenth day oktlzsequent
month of the collections received.
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[4] Income recognition:

Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company accountedganvestment in finance receivables using therest
method under the guidance of Practice BulletinAnbrtization of Discounts on Certain Acquired LodrEffective
October 1, 2005, the Company adopted and begasttuat for its investment in finance receivableagishe
interest method under the guidance of AICPA StateroEPosition 03-3, “Accounting for Loans or Cénta
Securities Acquired in a Transfer” (“SOP 03-3").

Practice Bulletin 6 was amended by SOP 03-3. Utideguidance of SOP 03-3 (and the amended Practice
Bulletin 6), static pools of accounts are estaklishThese pools are aggregated based on certamaomisk
criteria. Each static pool is recorded at costiaratcounted for as a single unit for the recognitf income,
principal payments and loss provision. Once acstaidl is established for a quarter, individualkeigable accounts
are not added to the pool (unless replaced bydlersor removed from the pool (unless sold oume¢d to the
seller). SOP 03-3 (and the amended Practice Bul@trequires that the excess of the contractusti aws over
expected cash flows not be recognized as an adjustof revenue or expense or on the balance sheet.

SOP 03-3 initially freezes the internal rate otiraf referred to as IRR, estimated when the acsowteivable are
purchased, as the basis for subsequent impairmstirid. Significant increases in actual, or expbétture cash
flows may be recognized prospectively through arvam adjustment of the IRR over a portfolio’s reniagy life.
Any increase to the IRR then becomes the new beadhfar impairment testing. Effective for fiscalars
beginning October 1, 2005 under SOP 03-3 and tlended Practice Bulletin 6, rather than loweringgbmated
IRR if the collection estimates are not receivegrajected to be received, the carrying value pbal would be
written down to maintain the then current IRR. Suchie down is classified as an impairment. SeeeNo{6] for
more information on impairments. Income on finareeeivables is earned based on each staticpefigctive IRR
Under the interest method, income is recognizethereffective yield method based on the actual caiacted
during a period and future estimated cash flowstamithg of such collections and the portfolio’s td3evenue
arising from collections in excess of anticipatetbants attributable to timing differences is deddrrThe estimated
future cash flows are reevaluated quarterly.

The Company’s analysis of the timing and amourdash flows to be generated by the portfolio purebase
based on the following attributes:

« the type of receivable, the location of the deliud the number of collection agencies previoushnapting
to collect the receivables in the portfolio. Then@any has found that certain states have exhibiéigr
collection histories than others and this charéstieris factored in when estimating the initiasb&low
expectations

* the average balance of the receivables influerreeanalysis as that lower average balance porsfdiod to
be more collectible in the shaerm and higher average balance portfolios are switable for a suit strate
and thus yield better results over the longer t&xmthe Company has significant experience withn ligpes
of balances, the Company is able to factor thegahlas into the initial estimate of cash flov

* the age of the receivables, the number of day® siharge-off, the payments, if any, since chaifeand the
credit guidelines of the credit originator alsonegent factors taken into consideration in thevesion
process since, for example, older receivables niightore difficult to collect in amount and/or r@gumore
time to collect;

* past history and performance of similar assetsiemdjuAs the Company purchases portfolios of likeats, i
analyzes the like tendencies of debtor repaymertddactors this into the initial estimate of exmettash
flows;

» the Company’s ability to analyze accounts and fesebunts that meet certain criteria, such aseeof the
receivable, the status of the receivables (payingpc-paying) and the selling price it can obtain; i

« estimating the Company'’s ability to locate debtortheir jobs, properties and other assets founlkinvi
portfolios. With the Companyg’business model, this is of particular importafxebtors with jobs or propet
are more likely to repay their obligation througle suit strategy and conversely, debtors withdos jor
property are less likely to repay their obligatidvhile the Company believes that debtors with jobs
property are more likely to repay, it also belietlest these debtors generally might take longeepay and
that is factored into the initial expected cashvio
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The Company acquires accounts that have experiatetedoration of credit quality between originatiand
the date of the Company’s acquisition of the act®urhe amount paid for a portfolio of accountdet the
determination that it is probable the Company bdélunable to collect all amounts due accordindpégportfolio of
accounts contractual terms.

The Company considers the expected payments aintagss the amount and timing of undiscounted exgukct
principal, interest and other cash flows for eaotpuéred portfolio coupled with expected cash fldvesn accounts
available for sales. The excess of this amount thescost of the portfolio, representing the exa#she account’s
cash flows expected to be collected over the ampainl, is accreted into income recognized on fieaeceivables
over the expected remaining life of the portfolio.

The Company acquires these portfolios only aftéh Iopialitative and quantitative analyses of theaulyihg
receivables are performed and a calculated purgivéaseis paid so that the Company believes thenastd cash
flow offers an adequate return on the Company’'sigitipn costs after servicing expenses. Additignalhen
considering larger portfolio purchases of accoumtqortfolios from issuers from whom the Compaag limited
experience, the Company solicits third party semgdnput on liquidation rates and, at times, ipooates such inpi
into the estimates used for the expected cash flows

Typically, when purchasing portfolios for which tGempany has the experience detailed above, thep@myn
has expectations of achieving a 100% return oimvissted capital back within an 18-28 month tirearfe and
expectations of generating in the range of 130-160%e invested capital over 3-5 years. Curreritig, Company
uses this as the basis for establishing the olligessh flow estimates for portfolio purchases. Twnpany routinel
monitors these results against the actual castsflowd, in the event the cash flows are below eafieos and the
Company believes there are no reasons relatingete trming differences or explainable delays (sagltan occur
particularly when the court system is involved) ioe reduced collections, an impairment would lwerded as a
provision for credit losses. Conversely, in therg\tbe cash flows are in excess of expectationgfandeason is du
to timing, the Company would defer the recognitidithe “excess” collections by recording such escesdeferred
revenue. Such excess is presented in the acconmggipgiance sheet as a reduction of the carryinguatraf the
consumer receivables acquired for liquidation.

Under the cost recovery method, no income is reizegruntil the cost of the portfolio has been fulbgoverec
A pool can become fully amortized (zero carryingpbae on the balance sheet) while still generatash
collections. In this case, all cash collectionsramgnized as revenue when received. The Compses/the cost
recovery method when collections on a particula jpb accounts cannot be reasonably predicted.

[5] Furniture and equipment:

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost. Depiieni#s provided using the straight-line method rowe
estimated useful lives of the assets (5 to 7 years)

[6] Impairments:

The Company accounts for its impairments in acamdavith SOP 03-3. This SOP proposes guidance on
accounting for differences between contractualemkcted cash flows from an investoitial investment in loar
or debt securities acquired in a transfer if thdiferences are attributable, at least in partramit quality. Increase
in expected cash flows should be recognized proisedcthrough an adjustment of the internal rateedurn while
decreases in expected cash flows should be re@jagzan impairment. This SOP became effectiveli@ctb,
2005. Implementation of this SOP will make it mbkely that impairment losses and accretable yalgistments
will be recorded, as all downward revisions in eotion estimates will result in impairment charggsen the
requirement that the IRR of the affected pool be kenstant. Impairments of $9.1 million were retst during the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 as compaik2l 2anillion in the prior year.
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[7] Income taxes:

Deferred federal and state taxes arise from (Dgaition of finance income collected for tax purpssbut not
yet recognized for financial reporting; (ii) proma for impairments/credit losses, and (iii) invasincome
recognized on the equity method, all resultingrimirig differences between financial accounting tmdreporting.

[8] Net income per share:

Basic per share data is determined by dividingmegime by the weighted average shares outstandiriggithe
period. Diluted per share data is computed by digichet income by the weighted average sharesamdtistg,
assuming all dilutive potential common shares vigsaed. The assumed proceeds from the exerciskitivel
options are calculated using the treasury stockatebased on the average market price for the gherio

The following table presents the computation ofibasd diluted per share data for the years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Per Weighted Per Weighted Per
Net Average Share Net Average Share Net Average Share
Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares  Amount
Basic $52,266,00 13,807,83 $ 3.7¢ $45,765,00 13,637,40 $ 3.3€ $30,996,000 13,543,58 $ 2.2¢
Dilutive effect of stock Option 884,02: 977,74. 866,69!
Diluted $52,266,00 14,691,86 $ 3.5€ $45,765,00 14,615,14 $ 3.1% $30,996,00 14,410,27 $ 2.1F

[9] Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie
United States of America requires management tcenegkkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgittgassets and liabilities at the date of the fir@rstatements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhaneporting period. With respect to income ggition unde
the interest method, the Company takes into coretiida the relative credit quality of the underlyireceivables
constituting the portfolio acquired, the strategydlved to maximize the collections thereof, tmedirequired to
implement the collection strategy as well as ofhetors to estimate the anticipated cash flowsualctesults could
differ from those estimates including managemesstamates of future cash flows and the resultdatation of
collections between principal and interest resgltieerefrom. Downward revisions to estimated céshs will
result in impairments.

[10] Stock-based compensation:

The Company accounts for stock-based employee awsagien under Financial Accounting Standards Beard’
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. (R8sised 2005), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R").
SFAS 123R, which the Company adopted October 15,2@Quires that compensation expense associatedtock
options be recognized in the statement of operstiather than a disclosure in the notes to the2aoiyis
consolidated financial statements.

Effective September 30, 2005, the Company acceléitae vesting of all unvested stock options presiip
awarded to employees, officers and directors utfteCompanys stock option plans. In order to prevent unintet
personal benefits to employees, officers and dirscthe Board imposed restrictions on any shaesived through
the exercise of accelerated options held by thodigiduals. These restrictions prevented the shdap stock
obtained through exercise of an accelerated optitmm to the earlier of the original vesting datelee individual's
termination of employment. Financial Accountingr&tards Board (“FASB”) Financial Interpretation N
requires the Company to recognize compensationnsepender certain circumstances, such as the climatige
vesting schedule, that would allow an employeeetst in an option that would have otherwise beefeifed
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based on the award’s original terms. The Companggaired to recognize compensation expense oeaneiv
expected vesting periods based on estimates ofuimbders of options that employees ultimately vathin that
otherwise would have been forfeited, absent theifications. Of the 587,000 stock options that waffected by th
acceleration of the vesting of all stock option®@&September 30, 2005, 133,000 shares would nat hested at
September 30, 2007, had it not been for the aatedarof the vesting. Of the 133,000 shares, 12¥,0095.1%, ar
attributable to officers and directors of the CompaAll of the accelerated options, absent the lacagon, vested
effective November 16, 2007. The primary purposthefaccelerated vesting was to eliminate the cosyien
expense the Company would otherwise have recogimziéslincome statement with respect to theselacated
stock options based upon the adoption of SFAS 123R.

Pro-forma net income for the year ended Septem®e2@5 if the fair value based method as presdrifye
disclosure only provisions of Statement of Finah8iecounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, Accountiiog Stock
Based Compensation and SFAS No. 148 Accountingtiock Based Compensation — Transition and Discésar
displayed in the following table.

Year
Ended September 3C
2005
Net income as reporte $ 30,996,00
Stock based compensation expense determined wmdeafue method, net of related tax
effects (3,746,000
Pro forma net incom $ 27,250,00
Earnings per shan
Basic— as reportel $ 2.2¢
Basic— pro forma $ 2.01
Diluted — as reporte $ 2.1t
Diluted — pro forma $ 1.8¢

The weighted average fair value of the options gcduring 2005 was $18.44 per share on the dagsot
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model witk following assumptions: dividend yield 0.8%, weid
average volatility 40%, expected life 10 years,ghéed average risk free interest rate of 4.19%.

[11] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uolard (“FASB”) issued FASB Statement No. 141
(revised 2007)Business Combinatiof§ASB Statement No. 141R"). FASB Statement No,R4é&places FASB
Statement No. 144 Business Combinatiof§~ASB Statement No. 141") The objective of FASEt8ment
No. 141R is to improve the relevance, represematitaithfulness, and comparability of the inforinatthat a
reporting entity provides in its financial repoaisout a business combination and its effects. Toraplish that, this
Statement establishes principles and requirementsoiw the acquirer:

a. recognizes and measures in its financial stattntlee identifiable assets acquired, the liabsiti
assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in theliaee;

b. recognizes and measures the goodwill acquirdfukilbbusiness combination or a gain from a bargain
purchase; and

c. determines what information to disclose to egaisiers of the financial statements to evaluatadhgre
and financial effects of the business combination.
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FASB Statement No. 141R applies to all transact@rather events in which an entity (the acquicdains
control of one or more businesses (the acquireelyding those sometimes referred to as “true mefge “merger
of equals” and combinations achieved without thegfer of consideration, for example, by contréatea or
through the lapse of minority veto rights. FASBt8itaent No. 141R applies to all business entitrduding mutus
entities that previously used the pooling-of-intésemethod of accounting for some business conibimatlt does
not apply to:

a. the formation of a joint venture;
b. the acquisition of an asset or a group of aghatsdoes not constitute a business;
c. a combination between entities or businessesrwammon control; and

d. a combination between not-for-profit organizati@r the acquisition of a for-profit business byo&
for-profit organization.

FASB Statement No. 141R retains the guidance inB-&ftement No. 141 for identifying and recognizing
intangible assets separately from goodwill. . FASBtement No. 141R requires an acquirer to receghiz assets
acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-cdlittg interest in the acquiree at the acquisititate, measured at
their fair values at that date.

FASB Statement No. 141 R applies prospectivelyusiriess combinations for which the acquisition datn
or after the beginning of the first annual repagtperiod beginning on or after December 15, 2008eAtity may
not apply it before that date. Currently the Compdoes not anticipate that FASB Statement No. 14ilRhave an
impact on the Company'’s financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB StatemenflBi®@ —Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statement— an Amendment of ARB No..51FASB Statement No. 160”) A noncontrolling ingst,
sometimes called a minority interest, is the portié equity in a subsidiary not attributable, diheor indirectly, to
a parent. The objective of FASB Statement No. 380 improve the relevance, comparability, andspamnency of
the financial information that a reporting entityopides in its consolidated financial statement&stablishing
accounting and reporting standards that require:

« the ownership interests in subsidiaries held byiggpther than the parent be clearly identifiatieled, and
presented in the consolidated statement of finapoisition within equity, but separate from theqats
equity.

 the amount of consolidated net income attributablde parent and to the noncontrolling interestlearly
identified and presented on the face of the codat#d statement of incornr

» changes in a parent’s ownership interest whilgotirent retains its controlling financial interesits
subsidiary be accounted for consistently. A paseotvnership interest in a subsidiary changes iptrent
purchases additional ownership interests in itsislidry or if the parent sells some of its owngpshterests
in its subsidiary. It also changes if the subsidi@acquires some of its ownership interests osthmsidiary
issues additional ownership interests. All of thtraesactions are economically similar, and thatehent
requires that they be accounted for similarly, @ity transactions

« when a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retaimedantrolling equity investment in the former sulisiy
be initially measured at fair value. The gain aslon the deconsolidation of the subsidiary is omegkusing
the fair value of any noncontrolling equity investmh rather than the carrying amount of that rethine
investment

« entities provide sufficient disclosures that clgadlentify and distinguish between the interestthefparent
and the interests of the noncontrolling own
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FASB Statement No. 160 applies to all entities grapare consolidated financial statements, exuetstor-
profit organizations, but will affect only thosetigies that have an outstanding noncontrollingri@s¢in one or mor
subsidiaries or that deconsolidate a subsidiary.

FASB Statement No. 160 is effective for fiscal ygand interim periods within those fiscal yeaegjihning or
or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption isjtited.

FASB Statement No. 160 shall be applied prospdgtag of the beginning of the fiscal year in whtbis
Statement is initially applied, except for the gresition and disclosure requirements. The presentand
disclosure requirements shall be applied retrospagtfor all periods presented. Currently the Camp does not
anticipate that FASB Statement No. 160 will havenapact on the Company’s financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statementl¥8, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities— Including an amendment of FASB Statement No, thi$ Statement permits entities to
choose to measure many financial instruments andicether items at fair value. The objectiveasrhprove
financial reporting by providing entities with tbeportunity to mitigate volatility in reported eargs caused by
measuring related assets and liabilities diffeyewithout having to apply complex hedge accounpngyisions.
This Statement is expected to expand the userfdhie measurement, which is consistent with tharB's long-
term measurement objectives for accounting fomfoia instruments. This Statement is effectivetf Company’s
fiscal year that begins October 1, 2008. The Cometieves that the statement, when adopted, wilimpact the
Company.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Actiog Bulletin No. 108Considering the Effects of Prior
Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatemen®@uirent Year Financial Statemerf&AB 108). SAB 108
was issued in order to eliminate the diversityriagtice surrounding how public companies quantifaricial
statement misstatements. SAB 108 requires thattragis quantify errors using both a balance sre@income
statement approach and evaluate whether eitheoagipresults in a misstated amount that, wherekvant
guantitative and qualitative factors are considei®ecthaterial. SAB 108 became effective for the @any in the
current fiscal year. Adoption had no material impatthe Company.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB StatemenflbB,Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Pl— an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88 ntD632(RY“FASB
158”") FASB 158 improves financial reporting by ré@tng an employer to recognize the overfunded atarfunded
status of a defined benefit postretirement plahgothan a multiemployer plan) as an asset orliiln its
statement of financial position and to recognizangfes in that funded status in the year in whiehctianges occur
through comprehensive income of a business emi%B 158 also improves financial reporting by reong an
employer to measure the funded status of a plar thee date of its year-end statement of finang@adition, with
limited exceptions. FASB 158 was required to beleangented by the end of the Company’s fiscal ye&72@t this
time, the Company does not sponsor a defined hepiafi; therefore there is no impact on the Compaitly regard
to FASB 158.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statementi®l7 Fair Value MeasurementsThis Statement
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value in generally accepted accoungrigciples
(GAAP), and expands disclosures about fair valuasuements. This Statement applies under otheuating
pronouncements that require or permit fair valu@saeements, the Board having previously concludetddse
accounting pronouncements that fair value is thevamt measurement attribute. Accordingly, thig&tent does
not require any new fair value measurements. FABBe&ent No. 157 will be effective for the Companfyhancial
statements issued for the fiscal year beginningstl, 2008. The Company does not expect the iatopt FASB
Statement No. 157 to have a material impact ofingscial reporting, and is currently evaluating impact, if any,
the adoption of FASB Statement No. 157 will havelendisclosure requirements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation48,“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxesa#r
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1d®IN 48), which prescribes a recognition threshasdd measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognitionl aneasurement of a tax position taken or expdotbé taken in a
tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on degsitmn, classification, interest and penaltiegamting in
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interim periods, disclosure and transition. FINwi8 be effective for the fiscal year beginning @ber 1, 2007. The
Company does not expect the adoption of FIN 48iela material impact on the financial reporting disclosure.

[12] Reclassifications:

Certain items in prior years’ financial statemdmse been reclassified to conform to current year’s
presentation.

NoTeE B —CoNSUMER RECEIVABLES ACQUIRED FOR LIQUIDATION

Accounts acquired for liquidation are stated airthet realizable value and consist primarily ofadgted
consumer loans to individuals throughout the countr

Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company accounteit$anvestment in finance receivables using therast
method under the guidance of Practice BulletinAnbrtization of Discounts on Certain Acquired LodrEffective
October 1, 2005, the Company adopted and begasttuat for its investment in finance receivableagishe
interest method under the guidance of SOP 03-&tiPeaBulletin 6 was amended by SOP 03-3. Undegthidance
of SOP 03-3 (and the amended Practice Bulletista}ic pools of accounts are established. Thesks poe
aggregated based on certain common risk critedahtatic pool is recorded at cost and is accduoteas a single
unit for the recognition of income, principal paym&and loss provision. Once a static pool is distedd for a
quarter, individual receivable accounts are noeddd the pool (unless replaced by the sellergoraved from the
pool (unless sold or returned to the seller). SBB Qand the amended Practice Bulletin 6) requhiesthe excess
of the contractual cash flows over expected cashisIinot be recognized as an adjustment of reveneepense or
on the balance sheet. SOP 03-3 initially freezegriternal rate of return, referred to as IRR,meated when the
accounts receivable are purchased, as the basialieequent impairment testing. Significant inoeeas actual, or
expected future cash flows may be recognized potisedy through an upward adjustment of the IRRrave
portfolio’s remaining life. Any increase to the IRRen becomes the new benchmark for impairmennggest
Effective for fiscal years beginning October 1, 2@thder SOP 03-8nd the amended Practice Bulletin 6, rather
lowering the estimated IRR if the collection estiesaare not received or projected to be receiveddcarrying value
of a pool would be written down to maintain therttoeirrent IRR. Income on finance receivables iseadbased on
each static poat effective IRR. Under the interest method, incasmecognized on the effective yield method b
on the actual cash collected during a period ahgdestimated cash flows and timing of such ctibes and the
portfolio’s cost. Revenue arising from collectionexcess of anticipated amounts attributablentin differences
is deferred. The estimated future cash flows aggakiated quarterly.

Under the cost recovery method, no income is reizegruntil the cost of the portfolio has been futbgoverec
A pool can become fully amortized (zero carryingpbae on the balance sheet) while still generatash
collections. In this case, all cash collectionsramgnized as revenue when received. Additiontlly, Company
uses the cost recovery method when collectionsmarticular pool of accounts cannot be reasonatagipted.

The Company accounts for its investments in consueweivable portfolios, using either:

 the interest method; ¢
« the cost recovery metha

The Company’s extensive liquidating experienceithe field of distressed credit card receivaltigigcom
receivables, consumer loan receivables, retailimsént contracts, mixed consumer receivables,aand deficienc
receivables. The Company uses the interest methhaattounting for substantially all asset acquisgiwithin thes
classes of receivables when it believe it can measly estimate the timing of the cash flows. Insthgituations
where the Company diversifies the acquisitions otteer asset classes where the Company does reggsothe
same expertise or history, or the Company canrsoreably estimate the timing of the cash flows QGbepany
utilizes the cost recovery method of accountingtfimse portfolios of receivables.
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Over time, as the Company continues to purchas elssses in which it believes it has the requisitpertise
and experience, the Company is more likely tozgithe interest method to account for such purchase

Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company accountedganvestment in finance receivables using therest
method under the guidance of Practice Bulleting&Hepurchase was treated as a separate portfakkzeif’ables
and was considered a separate financial investrardtaccordingly the Company did not aggregate ks
under Practice Bulletin 6 as the underlying coliatéad similar characteristics. After SOP 03-3 wdspted by the
Company beginning with the Company’s fiscal yead@dhe Company began to aggregate portfoliosagivables
acquired sharing specific common characteristicelvtvere acquired within a given quarter. The Conypa
currently consider for aggregation portfolios ofaents, purchased within the same fiscal quatet,denerally
meet the following characteristics:

same issuer/originata

same underlying credit qualit

similar geographic distribution of the accout
similar age of the receivable; a

same type of asset class (credit cards, telecoin

The Company uses a variety of qualitative and qtaive factors to estimate collections and thangrthereof
The analysis includes the following variables:

The number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol

the average balance of the receivables, as higandes might be more difficult to collect whileMo
balances might not be cost effective to coll

the age of the receivables, as older receivablghtrbie more difficult to collect or might be lessst
effective. On the other hand, the passage of fimegrtain circumstances, might result in highdleotions
due to changing life events of some individual ded

past history of performance of similar ass

number of days since cha-off;

payments made since chaz-off;

the credit originator and its credit guidelin

the Compan’s ability to analyze accounts and resell accodvasmeet the criteria for resa

the locations of the debtors as there are betgssto attempt to collect in and ultimately therPany has
better predictability of the liquidations and thepected cash flows. Conversely, there are alsestahere
the liquidation rates are not as favorable andithfsictored into the cash flow analys

jobs or property of the debtors found within politie-with the Company’s business model, this is of
particular importance. Debtors with jobs or propete more likely to repay their obligation and cersely,
debtors without jobs or property are less likelydpay their obligation ; ar

the ability to obtain customer statements fromatiginal issuer

The Company obtains and utilizes as appropriatetiffpm third party collection agencies and attgsas
further evidentiary matter, to assist in evaluatimgl developing collection strategies and in evalgand modelin
the expected cash flows for a given portfolio.
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The following tables summarize the changes in #iarize sheet of the investment in receivable pato
during the following periods.

For the Year Ended September 30, 20C

Accrual Cash
Basis Basis
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of peric $ 256,199,00 $ 1,076,001 $ 257,275,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolios, n 390,350,00 50,545,00 440,895,00
Net cash collections from collection of consur
receivables acquired for liquidation( (213,135,00) (14,478,00) (227,613,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sél
consumer receivables acquired for liquidal (47,502,00) (6,691,001 (54,193,00)
Transfer to cost recovery( (4,478,00) 4,478,001
Impairments (9,097,00i) (9,097,001
Finance income recognized| 136,178,00 2,178,001 138,356,00
Balance, end of peric $ 508,515,00 $ 37,108,00 $ 545,623,00
Revenue as a percentage of collecti 52.2% 10.2% 49.1%

(1) Includes put backs of purchased accounts retum#tktseller totaling $5.5 milliol

(2) Represents a portfolio acquired during the threathmended December 31, 2006 which the Company has
successfully negotiated the return to the sellee portfolio was returned on July 31, 20

(3) Includes $23.9 million derived from fully amortizederest method pool

For the Year Ended September 30, 2006

Accrual Cash
Basis Basis
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of peric $ 172,636,00 $ 91,00( $ 172,727,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolios, n 200,237,00 200,237,00
Net cash collections from collection of consumeeieables
acquired for liquidatior (155,960,00) (3,473,000 (159,433,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sél
consumer receivables acquired for liquidal (54,800,00) (235,000 (55,035,00)
Transfer to cost recove (1,291,001 1,291,001
Impairments (2,245,000 (2,245,00i)
Finance income recognized( 97,622,00 3,402,001 101,024,00
Balance, end of peric $ 256,199,00 $ 1,076,00i $ 257,275,00
Revenue as a percentage of collecti 46.2% 91.7% 47.1%

(4) Includes $4.4 million derived from fully amortizétterest method pool
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As of September 30, 2007 the Company had $545,8@3r0consumer receivables acquired for liquidatafn
which $508,515,000 are accounted for on the inteneshod. Based upon current projections, net calctions,
applied to principal for interest method portfoliwdl be as follows for the twelve months in theripes ending:

September 30, 20( $180,559,00
September 30, 20( 156,531,00
September 30, 201 123,420,00
September 30, 201 63,864,00
September 30, 201 2,820,001

527,194,00
Deferred revenu (18,679,00)
Total $508,515,00

Accretable yield represents the amount of incoreeGbmpany can expect to generate over the remadifencf
its existing portfolios based on estimated futueeaash flows as of September 30, 2007. The Comadjugsts the
accretable yield upward when it believes, basedwailable evidence, that portfolio collections veikceed amounts
previously estimated. Changes in accretable ymidHe fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 an€l afi0as

follows:
Year Ended
September 30
2007
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2 $ 148,900,00*
Income recognized on finance receivables, (136,178,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from plaes$ 144,764,00
Impairments (3,345,00i)
Reclassifications from nonaccretable differe 22,474,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, 2 $ 176,615,00
Year Ended
September 30
2006
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2 $ 94,022,00
Income recognized on finance receivables, (97,622,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from plaes 103,061,00
Impairments (151,000
Reclassifications from nonaccretable differe 49,590,00*
Balance at end of period, September 30, z $148,900,00*

* Revised to reflect zero basis income recogni

During the year ended September 30, 2007, the Coynmarchased $10.9 billion of face value charged-of
consumer receivables at a cost of approximateld #4dhillion. This includes a portfolio with an apgimate value
of $4.5 million that was recently returned to tedlex at the Company’s original cost and put basfiqsurchased
accounts returned to the seller totaling $5.5 omlliDuring the year ended September 30, 2006, tmep@ny
purchased $5.2 billion of face value charged-offstoner receivables at a cost of $200.2 millionSAptember 30,
2007, the estimated remaining net collections eréceivables purchased during the fiscal yearcende
September 30, 2007 are $460.2 million.
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The following table summarizes collections on asgrbasis as received by the Company’s thady collectior
agencies and attorneys, less commissions and dstg for the years ended September 30, 2007 Q06 2
respectively.

For the Years Ended, September 30,

2007 2006
Gross collections(1 $398,432,00 $320,203,00
Commissions and fees( 116,626,00 105,735,00
Net collections $281,806,00 $214,468,00

(1) Gross collections include: collections from thirdHy collection agencies and attorneys, collectioos in-
house efforts and collections represented by a¢sales

(2) Commissions and fees are the contractual commissiamed by third party collection agencies anutadtys,
and direct costs associated with the collectioareffjenerally court costs. The Company expectotdinue to
purchase portfolios and utilize third party collentagencies and attorney netwot

Finance income recognized on collections repreddngeaccount sales was $25.2 million, $32.0 milkom
$24.9 million for the fiscal years ended Septen8r2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

NoTE ACQUISITION
C—

In February 2006, the Company acquired VATIV Recg\&olutions, LLC (“VATIV”) for approximately
$1.4 million in cash. VATIV provides bankruptcy addceased account servicing. The purchase prickdeas
allocated to goodwill. The revenue and operatirsgilite of VATIV are immaterial to the Company.

NOTE D —INVESTMENT IN VENTURE

In August 2006, the Company acquired a 25% intenestnewly formed venture for $7,810,000. The Camp
accounts for its investment in the venture usirgetuity method. This venture is in business toidigte the assets
of a retail business which it acquired through baptcy proceedings. It is anticipated the liquidatwill be
completed over the next 12 to 24 months. Fromrhbeption of the venture in 2006, through SeptendBe007,
distributions from the venture to the Company w&8e45,000. During fiscal year 2007, the Comparmgired
distributions in the amount of $4,150,000, of wh&3)925,000 has been classified as investing &esvi

NOTE E — FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture and equipment as of September 30, 206 2666 consist of the following:

2007 2006
Furniture $ 307,000 $ 307,00(
Equipment 2,534,001 2,563,001
2,841,001 2,870,001
Less accumulated depreciati 2,048,001 1,769,00
Balance, end of peric $ 793,000 $1,101,00

Depreciation expense for the years ended SepteBdh@007, 2006 and 2005 aggregated $279,000, $324,0
and $272,000, respectively.
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NoTE F —ADVANCES UNDER LINES OoF CREDIT

On July 11, 2006, the Company entered into thethodmended and Restated Loan Agreement with a
consortium of banks, and as a result the crediitiamcreased to $175 million, up from $125 nulh with an
expandable feature which allows the Company thiityatn increase the line to $225 million with tbensent of the
banks. The line of credit bears interest at thedesf LIBOR plus an applicable margin, or the grirate minus an
applicable margin based on certain leverage rafibs.credit line is collateralized by all portfdiof consumer
receivables acquired for liquidation, other tham Bortfolio Purchase discussed below, and contaistomary
financial and other covenants (relative to tangit#eworth, interest coverage, and leverage raiaefined) that
must be maintained in order to borrow funds. Thentef the agreement is three years. The applicaieat
September 30, 2007 and 2006 respectively was 7afi7.25%. The average interest rate excludingathosedit
line fees for the years ended September 30, 2002@06, respectively was 7.61% and 6.97%. The audstg
balance on this line of credit was approximatel4ZX million as of September 30, 2007.

On December 4, 2007, the Company entered in t&itkth Amendment to the Fourth Restated Loan Agres
temporarily increasing the line of credit from $1milion to $185 million. See Note O — Subsequeneiis for
more information.

Additionally, in March 2007, Palisades Acquisitigil, LLC (“Palisades XVI”), an affiliate of the Copany,
borrowed approximately $227 million under a new &eables Financing Agreement, as amended in July 2@itk
a major financial institution, in order to purchasportfolio of approximately $6.9 billion in fagalue receivables
for a purchase price of $300 million (plus 20% ef payments after the Company recovers 150% plitshase
price plus cost of funds). The debt is full receuosly to Palisades XVI, and bears an interestab#gpproximately
170 basis points over LIBOR. The applicable rat8egitember 30, 2007 was 7.46%. The average intatestrom
the inception of the Receivable Financing Agreentigrtugh September 30, 2007 was 7.06%. The tertmeof
agreement is three years. All proceeds receivedrasult of the net collections from this portfadie applied to
interest and principal of the underlying loan. Huetfolio is serviced by Palisades Collection Ll2Oyholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which has engaged aesulbsr for the portfolio. As of September 30, 20the
outstanding balance on this loan was approxim&#84.8 million and the carrying amount of the paitfs assets
collateralizing this debt was $265.5 million.

See Note O — Subsequent Events for paydown of Ralolei Financing Agreement by a subsidiary and
amendment to the Receivable Financing Agreement.

The Company’s total average debt obligation forytbar ended September 30, 2007 was approximately
$241.5 million, with an average interest rate G4¥bs.
NoTe G —OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities as of September 30, 2007 and 2&@6as follows:

2007 2006
Accounts payable and accrued expel $6,998,000  $3,205,00!
Other 539,00( 1,133,001
Total other liabilities $7,537,000  $4,338,00!
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NoTeE H —INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxeste years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and&2605

as follows:
2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federa $30,476,00 $29,206,00 $15,947,00
State 9,999,00I 9,584,00!I 5,234,00I
40,475,00 38,790,000 21,181,00
Deferred:
Federa (3,593,001 (5,820,00i) 82,00(
State (1,179,001 (1,910,001 27,00(
(4,772,000 (7,730,001 109,00(
Provision for income taxe $35,703,00 $31,060,00 $21,290,00

The difference between the statutory federal inctareate on the Company'’s pre-tax income and the
Company’s effective income tax rate is summarizetbdows:

2007 2006 2005

Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income tax, net of federal ben 5.8 5.8 5.8
Other (0.2 (0.9 (0.3
Effective income tax rat 40.6% 40.2 40.7%

The Company recognized a net deferred tax as$i2)849,000 and $7,577,000 as of September 30, 2007
2006, respectively. The components are as follows:

September 30 September 3C

2007 2006
Deferred revenu $ 7,564,00 7,062,001
Impairments 4,594,001 909,00(
Compensation expen 505,00( —
Equity in venture (314,000 (223,000
Other — (171,000
Net deferred ass $12,349,00 $ 7,577,001

NOTE | —COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Employment Agreements

January 25, 2007, the Company entered into employagreements (each as “Employment Agreement”) with
the Company’s President and Chief Executive Offittes Company’s Executive Vice President and the@amy’s
Chief Financial Officer (each, an “Executive”). Baaf Gary Stern’s and Mitchell CohenEmployment Agreemer
expire on December 31, 2009, and Arthur Stern’s IBympent Agreement expires on December 31, 2007%;ighed,
however, that the parties are required to providety days’ prior written notice if they do notémtd to seek an
extension or renewal of the Employment Agreemédmath Employment Agreement is not renewed by the
expiration dates each executive will continue githespective roles as officers of the Comparthatdiscretion of
the Board of Directors.
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LEASES

The Company leases its facilities in Englewoodf€liNew Jersey; Bethlehem, Pennsylvania; and Sieyad,
Texas. The leases are operating leases, and thpabgrmcurred related rent expense in the amour#526,000,
$381,000 and $381,000 during the years ended Sbpte30, 2007, 2006 and 2004, respectively. Thedutu
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year

Ending

September 3C
2008 $ 446,00!
2009 445,00(
2010 313,00t
2011 31,00(
2012 —

$1,235,00

CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compsuiyvolved in numerous legal proceedings. The Gamy
regularly initiates collection lawsuits, using iitstwork of third party law firms, against consumeso, consumers
occasionally initiate litigation against the Compaim which they allege that the Company has veda federal or
state law in the process of collecting their ac¢olihe Company does not believe that these madtermaterial to
its business and financial condition. As of Septen9, 2007, the Company was not involved in anienel
litigation in which it was a defendant.

During 2006, a subsidiary of the Company receiwdgpsenas from three jurisdictions to produce infaion
in connection with debt collection practices ingbqurisdictions. The Company has fully cooperatéh the
issuing agencies and has provided the requestedraotation. One jurisdiction has closed the casle mo action
taken against the Company. The Company has not emadprovision with respect to the remaining mattarthe
financial statements as the nature of these matterstitute information requests only.

In the course of conducting its business, the Camsrequired by certain of the jurisdictions viitlwwhich it
operates to obtain licenses and permits to corittucbllection activities. The Company has beerifieot by one
such jurisdiction that it did not operate for aipérof time from February 1, 2005 to April 17, 20@6h the proper
license. The Company did not make any provisiorstmh matter in its financial statements. Therelsen no
communication from the jurisdiction regarding thigtter for over a year. Currently, the Companyrgpprly
licensed in this jurisdiction.

NoTe J —Stock OPTION PLANS
Equity Compensation Plan

On December 1, 2005, the Board of Directors adofitedCompany’s Equity Compensation Plan (the “Bquit
Compensation Plan”), subject to the approval ofstieekholders of the Company. The Equity Compeosd®ilan
was adopted to supplement the Company’s existild@ Zlock Option Plan. In addition to permitting drant of
stock options as are permitted under the 2002 SBgtlon Plan, the Equity Compensation Plan alldves@ompan
flexibility with respect to equity awards by alswpiding for grants of stock awards (i.e. restritte unrestricted),
stock purchase rights and stock appreciation righte million shares are available for issuancesutite Equity
Compensation Plan. The Equity Compensation Plarratidied by the shareholders on March 1, 2006.
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The general purpose of the Equity Compensation iBlemprovide an incentive to the Company’s empésy
directors and consultants, including executiveceifs, employees and consultants of any subsidjdyesnabling
them to share in the future growth of the busin€ks. Board of Directors believes that the grantihgtock options
and other equity awards promotes continuity of ngangent and increases incentive and personal interdse
welfare of the Company by those who are primaslyponsible for shaping and carrying out the lomgeaplans
and securing growth and financial success.

The Board believes that the Equity Compensation Ridl advance the Company’s interests by enhanitgg
ability to (a) attract and retain employees, diveztand consultants who are in a position to maj@ficant
contributions to the Company’s success; (b) reveangloyees, directors and consultants for theseibatibns; and
(c) encourage employees, directors and consultantke into account the Company’s long-term irger¢hrough
ownership of the Company’s shares.

The Company has 1,000,000 shares of Common Stdbkrized for issuance under the Equity Compensation
Plan and 932,000 were available as of Septembe&2(8,. As of September 30, 2007, approximatelydfihe
Company’s employees were eligible to participatthenEquity Compensation Plan. Future grants utideEquity
Compensation Plan have not yet been determined.

2002 Stock Option Plan

On March 5, 2002, the Board of Directors adoptedAkta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan (the02
Plan”), which plan was approved by the Companyosligtolders on May 1, 2002. The 2002 Plan was addpte
order to attract and retain qualified directorgicefs and employees of, and consultants to, thagamy. The
following description does not purport to be contplend is qualified in its entirety by referencehe full text of
the 2002 Plan, which is included as an exhibihto€ompany’s reports filed with the SEC.

The 2002 Plan authorizes the granting of incergteek options (as defined in Section 422 of the&}@ohd
non-qualified stock options to eligible employeéshe Company, including officers and directorglef Company
(whether or not employees) and consultants of th@agany.

The Company has 1,000,000 shares of Common Stdbkréed for issuance under the 2002 Plan and 343,3
were available as of September 30, 2007. As ofedeiper 30, 2007, approximately 172 of the Company’s
employees were eligible to participate in the 280h. Future grants under the 2002 Plan have nidigen
determined.

1995 Stock Option Plan

The 1995 Stock Option Plan expired on SeptembeR0d5. The plan was adopted in order to attractratain
qualified directors, officers and employees of, andsultants, to the Company. The following dedmipdoes not
purport to be complete and is qualified in its extyi by reference to the full text of the 1995 &t@ption Plan,
which is included as an exhibit to the Companyjzorés filed with the SEC.

The 1995 Stock Option Plan authorized the grargirigcentive stock options (as defined in Secti@a 4f the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€'QJoand non-qualified stock options to eligible @oyees of
the Company, including officers and directors & @ompany (whether or not employees) and consaltarthe
Company.

The Company authorized 1,840,000 shares of Comrtamk $or issuance under the 1995 Stock Option Plan.
All but 96,002 shares were utilized. As of Septenise 2005, no more options could be issued urdsptan.
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The following table summarizes stock option tratisas under the plans:

Year Ended September 30

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding options at the beginning
year 1,414,43° $ 9.4f 1,580,600 $ 9.11 1,364,17. $ 6.27
Options grante: 18,00( 28.7¢ 0.0c 422,50( 18.4¢
Options cancelle 0.0C (6,339 22.3¢ (43,007 12.21
Options exercise (95,00) 13.9¢ (159,83) 5.51 (163,069 8.7(

Outstanding options at the end ofy ~ 1,337,43{ $ 9.3¢ 1414,43' $ 9.4t 1,580,600 $ 9.11
Exercisable options at the end of y 1,325,43¢ $ 9.21 1,414,43' $ 9.4t 1,580,600 $ 9.11

The Company recognized $141,000 of compensatioaresgrelated to 18,000 stock options granted dunieg
fiscal year ended September 30, 2007. As of Semes 2007, there was $135,000 of unrecognizegeosation
cost related to unvested stock options. The Compaeggnized $105,000 of stock based compensatipanse in
fiscal year 2006.

The intrinsic value of options exercised during fiseal years ended September 30, 2007 and 20686, wa
$2.1 million and $4.6 million, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of the outstandindyexercisable options as of September 30, 20028086 was
$38.6 million and $40.4 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes information abowt filans’ outstanding options as of September 307220

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Price Outstanding  Life (In Years) Price Exercisable Price
$0.810C- $ 2.875C 600,00( 25 $ 2.020¢ 600,00( $ 2.020¢
$2.8751- $ 5.750C 106,66 51 4.725( 106,66’ 4.725(
$5.7501- $ 8.625C 12,00( 4.1 5.960( 12,00( 5.960(
$14.3751- $17.250( 218,61: 6.2 15.035! 218,61: 15.035!
$17.2501- $20.125( 382,16( 7.C 18.221° 382,16( 18.221°
$25.8751- $28.750( 18,00( 9.2 28.750( 6,00( 28.750(
1,337,43 5.6 $9.388. 1,325,431 $ 9.212¢
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The following table summarizes information aboutrieted stock transactions:

Year Ended Weighted
September 30, 200 Average Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Unvested at the beginning of peri 0 $ 0.0C
Awards grante« 68,00C 28.7¢
Vested (22,667 28.7¢
Forfeited 0 0.0C
Unvested at the end of peri 45,33: $ 28.7¢

The Company recognized $999,000 of compensatioareserelated to 68,000 shares of restricted starker
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007afAeptember 30, 2007, there was $956,000 of ogrézed
compensation cost related to unvested restrictazk st

The Company recognized a total of $1,140,000 inpemsation expense in fiscal year 2007 for bothkstoc
options and restricted stock grants. As of Septer&@e2007, there was a total of $1,091,000 of cogaized
compensation cost related to unvested stock optindgestricted stock grants.

NoTe K —STOoCKHOLDERS ' EQuUITY

During the year ended September 30, 2007, the Coyngheclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating
$2,221,000 which includes $0.04 per share, pertguaf which $557,000 was accrued as of Septe®®e2007
and paid November 1, 2007. During the year end@deSeer 30, 2006, the Company declared quartegly ca
dividends aggregating $7,687,000 which include®4@er share, per quarter, plus a special dividéi$.40 per
share which in total amounted to $6,052,000 andpais November 1, 2006. During the year ended Sapte 30,
2005 the Company declared quarterly cash dividegdsegating $1,901,000 ($0.035 per share, perepiait
which $476,000 was paid November 1, 2005. The Compapects to pay a regular cash dividend in futrarters

This will be at the discretion of the board of di@s and will depend upon the Company’s financialdition,
operating results, capital requirements and angrdtdctors the board of directors deems relevaraddition,
agreements with the Company’s lenders may, frore tiortime, restrict the ability to pay dividends.

NoOTE L —RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company maintains a 401(k) Retirement Planriogell of its eligible employees. Matching cobtrtions
made by the employees to the plan are made aigbeetion of the board of directors each plan y€antributions
for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 &0&\26re $117,000, $96,000 and $70,000, respectively

NoTE M —FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 1Di&closures about Fair Values of Financial
Instruments” (“SFAS 107"), requires disclosure aif fvalue information about financial instrumemether or not
recognized on the balance sheet, for which itaeticable to estimate that value. Because thera hngéited number
of market participants for certain of the Comparassets and liabilities, fair value estimates aseld upon
judgments regarding credit risk, investor expectatf economic conditions, normal cost of admiistm and othe
risk characteristics, including interest rate angppyment risk. These estimates are subjectivatura and involve
uncertainties and matters of judgment, which sigaiftly affect the estimates.
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Fair value estimates are based on existing balsimeet financial instruments without attemptinggtireate the
value of anticipated future business and the vaflessets and liabilities that are not considensaicial
instruments. The tax ramifications related to #edization of the unrealized gains and losses e&r h significant
effect on the fair value estimates and have not lseasidered in the estimates.

The following summarizes the information as of ®eger 30, 2007 and 2006 about the fair value of the
financial instruments recorded on the Company’arfoial statements in accordance with SFAS 107:

2007 2006
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Cash, and cash equivale| $ 4,525,00 $ 4,525,00 $ 7,826,00 $ 7,826,00
Consumer receivables acquired for
liquidation 545,623,00 604,000,00 257,275,00 346,300,00
Advances under lines of credit, notes
payable and Due to affiliate 326,466,00 326,466,00 82,811,00 82,811,00

The methodology and assumptions utilized to estrtta fair value of the Company’s financial instents are
as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents:

The carrying amount approximates fair value.

Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation:

The Company has estimated the fair value baselleopresent value of expected future cash flows.
Advances under lines of credit, notes payable amdtd affiliates:

Since these are variable rate and short-term,dhging amounts approximate fair value.
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NOTE N — SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2007
Total revenue $25,645,00 $33,083,000 $38,938,000 $43,096,00 $140,762,00
Income before provision for incon
taxes 19,038,000 21,102,000 25,777,000 22,052,00 87,969,00
Net income 11,326,00 12,552,000 15,308,000 13,080,00 52,266,00
Basic net income per she $ 08z $ 091 $ 1.1C $ 092 § 3.7¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 071 $ 08t $ 1.0 $ 08¢ $ 3.5¢
2006
Total revenue $20,260,000 $24,829,000 $26,426,000 $30,464,00 $101,979,00
Income before provision for incon
taxes 15,645,00 18,679,000 19,810,000 22,691,00 76,825,00
Net income 9,312,000 11,103,000 11,780,000 13,570,00 45,765,00
Basic net income per she $ 0.6¢ $ 0.8z $ 0.8 $ 09¢ $ 3.3¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.6¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 08C $ 09: % 3.1
2005
Total revenue $13,830,000 $16,662,000 $19,028,000 $19,959,00 $ 69,479,00
Income before provision for incon
taxes 10,379,000 12,241,000 14,363,000 15,303,00 52,286,00
Net income 6,175,00! 7,281,001 8,536,00! 9,004,00! 30,996,00
Basic net income per she $ 0.4€¢ $ 054 $ 0.6 $ 0.6 $ 2.2¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 04: $ 051 $ 05¢ $ 0.6z $ 2.1t

* Due to rounding the sum of quarterly totals fom@ags per share may not add to the yearly t

NoTE O —SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company purchased portfolios of consumer retd#s with a face value of $965 million and a pasgh
price of $33.4 million subsequent to September2B0y/. Included in the portfolio purchases is onefplio
purchased from a major financial institution lochie a South American country in the amount of agpnately
$8.0 million. As a result of this purchase, the @amy will be exposed to currency rate fluctuatiaashe
collections on this portfolio will be denominatedthe local currency of the South American counryditionally,
our investment could also be exposed to the sameray risk. A strengthened U.S. dollar could dasecthe
U.S. dollar equivalent of the local currency cdileas, and our currency conversion to U.S. doNeosild suffer.

As of September 30, 2007, Palisade XVI, the Comjsaingirect wholly-owned subsidiary, was required t
remit an additional $13.1 million to its lenderarder to be in compliance under the Receivablericima
Agreement. The Company facilitated the ability afifades XVI to make this payment by borrowing $1r8illion
under its current revolving credit facility and sig another of its subsidiaries to purchase agrodf the Portfolio
from Palisade XVI at a price of $13.1 million primrthe measurement date under the Receivable ¢tirgan
Agreement.
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On December 4, 2007, the Company signed the SirterAiment to the Fourth Amended and Restated Loan
Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with a consartiof banks that temporarily increases the totablrgrmg loan
commitment from $175,000,000 to $185,000,000. Emeporary increase of $10,000,000 is required tepaid by
February 29, 2008. In the event the increase isep#tid by February 29, 2008, the then outstangargon of the
temporary increase shall be repaid over a six mpettod.

In December, 2007, the Company negotiated an agmenith a third party servicer, to assist the Campin
the asset location, skiptracing efforts and ultehathe suing of debtors with respect to the PtafBurchase. The
agreement calls for a 3% percent fee on substhndithigross collections from the Portfolio Purcham the first
$500 million and 7% on substantially all collectsoinom the Portfolio Purchase in excess of $500anil
Additionally, the Company will pay this third parsgrvicer a monthly fee of $275,000 per month faerity four
months for its consulting and skiptracing effortconnection with the Portfolio Purchase. Thisdegan in
May 2007.

On December 27, 2007, the Company entered intedbend amendment of its Receivable Financing
Agreement. As the actual collections have beeneldhan the minimum collections scheduled undeotignal
agreement, which contemplated sales of accountshwiave not occurred, the lender and the Compargeddo a
lower amortization schedule which does not contatepthe sales of accounts. The effect of this régluds to
extend the payments of the loan from approxima2élynonths to approximately 31 months. The lenderdharged
the Company a fee of $475,000.
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Exhibit 10.15

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE
RECEIVABLES FINANCING AGREEMENT

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE RECEIVABLES FINABING AGREEMENT, dated as of December 27, 2007 (this
Amendment), is entered into by and among PALISADES ACQUIEDN XVI, LLC, a Delaware limited liability companfthe “ Borrower
"), PALISADES COLLECTION, L.L.C., a Delaware limiteliability company (the “ Service), FAIRWAY FINANCE COMPANY, LLC
(the “ Lender"), BMO CAPITAL MARKETS CORP. (* BMO CM"), as Administrator for the Lender (in such capadhe “ Administrator
") and as collateral agent for the Secured Pafitiesuch capacity, the “ Collateral Ageit and BANK OF MONTREAL (“ BMQ"), as
liquidity agent for the Liquidity Providers (in sucapacity, the “ Liquidity Agen). Capitalized terms used and not otherwise deffinerein
are used as defined in the Receivables Financimgehgent, dated as of March 2, 2007 (as amendeplesnpnted or otherwise modified, the
“ Receivables Financing Agreeméntamong the Borrower, the Servicer, the Lendsg, Administrator, the Collateral Agent and the
Liquidity Agent.

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to ameadRiceivables Financing Agreement in certain raspescprovided herein;
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premiaad other material covenants contained heredrpdities hereto agree as follows:
SECTION 1. AmendmentsThe Receivables Financing Agreement is herebyndetatas follows:

1.1 The definition of “ Collection Rateas set forth in Section 1.1 of the Receivablemkting Agreement is hereby amended and restate:
in its entirety to read as follow:

“ Collection Raté means, for any Pool as of the last day of anyié@tibn Period, the quotient (expressed as a ptagehof (i) the
cumulative Collections for such Pool (net of theresponding Servicing Fees) received from Janua®pQ8 through such date, divided
(i) the Expected Pool Collections for such PoohfrJanuary 1, 2008 through such date.

1.2 The definition of “ Expected Pool Collexts” as set forth in Section 1.1 of the Receivablegmhcing Agreement is hereby amended
and restated in its entirety to read as follow:

“ Expected Pool Collectiorianeans, as of any date of determination and fgrRool, the amount of collections expected to loeiked
on such Pool through such date (net of the corretipg expected Servicing Fees) in accordance Wwah'¢umulative collection curve”
provided to the Administrator on December 27, 2@f7any reduced, but not increased, “cumulativéectibn




curve” (prepared in the event of an accounting inmpant taken with respect to such Pool) requiredgsubsequently provided to the
Administrator).

1.3 The definition of “ Rolling Collection Rat is hereby added to Section 1.1 of the Receivabieancing Agreement in alphabetical
order as follows:

“ Rolling Collection Raté means, as of the last day of any specified CtbedPeriods, the quotient (expressed as a pementd
(i) the Collections for all Pools (net of the capending Servicing Fees) during such Collectionddest divided by (ii) the Expected
Collections for all Pools (based on the “cumulatiedlection curve” provided to the Administrator December 27, 2007) for such
Collection Periods.

1.4 The definition of “ Program Féas set forth in Section 1.1 of the ReceivablesmRcing Agreement is hereby amended and restated i
its entirety to read as follows:

“ Program Feé has the meaning set forth in the Fee Letter,,phith respect to the Distribution Date occurringdanuary 10, 2008,
$475,000, payable on January 10, 2008.

1.5 Section 10.i5 hereby amended by adding a new paragraph anith¢hereof to be and to read as follows:

10.1.14 Rolling Collection RatéThe Rolling Collection Rate (i) for any two conaéve Collection Periods (commencing with the
January and February 2008 Collection Periodsgss than 85% or (ii) for any three consecutive &xibn Periods (commencing with the
January, February and March 2008 Collection PeYjasi¢ess than 95%.

SECTION 2. Receivables Financing Agreemeirfiiith Force and Effect as Amended

Except as specifically amended hereby, theeRables Financing Agreement shall remain in fotcg and effect. All references to the
Receivables Financing Agreement shall be deemetktm the Receivables Financing Agreement as mddifeeby. This Amendment shall
not constitute a novation of the Receivables Fimanégreement, but shall constitute an amendmesretif. The parties hereto agree to be
bound by the terms and conditions of the Receiwablrancing Agreement, as amended by this Amendrasrithough such terms and
conditions were set forth herein.

SECTION 3. Miscellaneous

A. On and as of the date hereof, the ®&oer hereby confirms, reaffirms and restates thessentations and warranties set forth in
Section 8.1 of the Receivables Financing Agreemeriatismutandis, except to the extent that such representatiodsvanranties expressly
relate to a specific earlier date in which caseBbgower hereby confirms, reaffirms and restateshgepresentations and warranties as of
such earlier date.




B. This Amendment may be executed inrnmyber of counterparts, and by the different pattiereto on the same or separate
counterparts, each of which when so executed alieded shall be deemed to be an original instrunbem all of which together shall
constitute one and the same agreement. The e#eetbs of this Amendment is subject to the condjii@eedent that the Administrator shall
have received counterparts of this Amendment, dwgcuted by all parties hereto.

C. The descriptive headings of the vagisections of this Amendment are inserted for coievee of reference only and shall not be
deemed to affect the meaning or construction ofdartiie provisions hereof.

D. This Amendment may not be amendedtoeravise modified except as provided in the ReddasFinancing Agreement.

E. Each of the Administrator and the Lendo not waive and have not waived, and herebyess}y reserve, its right at any time to t
any and all actions, and to exercise any and aleckes, authorized or permitted under the RecedgaBinancing Agreement, as amended, or
any of the other Transaction Documents, or avadlablaw or equity or otherwise.

F. The Borrower agrees to pay and reisdtine Administrator for all its reasonable cosis aut-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with the preparation and delivery o§ thmendment, including, without limitation, the seaable fees and disbursements of
counsel to the Administrator.

G. Any provision in this Amendment whiishprohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdictahall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective
to the extent of such prohibition or unenforcedpivithout invalidating the remaining provisionsreef, and any such prohibition or
unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not ididate or render unenforceable such provision yather jurisdiction.

H. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, ND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, TH
LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO ANOTHERWISE APPLICABLE CONFLICTS OF LAW
PRINCIPLES (OTHER THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN SECTIONLB01 OF THE GENERAL OBLIGATIONS LAW OF THE STATER
NEW YORK).

[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereteehaaused this Amendment to be duly executed alneded by their proper and duly
authorized officers as of the 27th of December,7200

PALISADES ACQUISITION XVI, LLC, as Borrower
By: /s/ Gary Stern

Name: Gary Stern
Title: Manager

BMO CAPITAL MARKET CORP., as Administrator and
as Collateral Agent

By: /s/ John Pappanc
Name: John Pappanc
Title: Managing Director
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FAIRWAY FINANCE COMPANY, LLC, as Lender

By: /s/ Orlando Figueroa

Name: Orlando Figueroi
Title:  Vice President
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PALISADES COLLECTION, L.L.C, as Servicer

By: /s/ Gary Stern

Name: Gary Sterr
Title: Manager




BANK OF MONTREAL, as Liquidity Agent

By: /s/ Gary Herron

Name: Gary Herron
Title:  Vice President






Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrélggstration statements (No. 333-142201) on Forgnd®
Asta Funding, Inc. of our reports dated DecembeRR07 with respect to our audit of the consoliddialance
sheets of Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries &eptember 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related lidatsol
statements of operations, stockholders’ equityash flows for each of the years in the three-peaiod ended
September 30, 2007, and managenseassessment of the effectiveness of internal cloower financial reporting
of September 30, 2007 and the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting as of Septem0, 2007,
which reports appear in the September 30, 2007amaport on Form 10-K of Asta Funding, Inc. antsdiaries.

/sl Eisner, LLP
Eisner, LLP

New York, NY
December 27, 200






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Gary Stern, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitgs 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdare
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thtgnal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall’
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradiisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi
report our conclusions about the effectiveness@efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of tHegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegsegnt's internal control over financial reportitiat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgelrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigtsaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to reggutbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Stern
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

December 28, 2007

A signed original of this written statement reqdii®y Section 302 has been provided to the Compadynél
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8ms and Exchange Commission or its staff pgquest.
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CERTIFICATION
I, Mitchell Cohen, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitgs 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdare
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thtgnal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financéarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall’
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradiisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi
report our conclusions about the effectiveness@efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of tHegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegsegnt's internal control over financial reportitiat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgelrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigtsaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to reggutbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

/sl Mitchell Cohen

Mitchell Cohen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

December 28, 2007

A signed original of this written statement reqdii®y Section 302 has been provided to the Compadynél
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8ms and Exchange Commission or its staff pgquest.






EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimce. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadéeg
September 30, 2007 as filed with the SecuritiesEr@hange Commission (the “Report”), I, Gary St&hijef

Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamil8 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant téoBed@6 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the consoliiate
financial condition of the company as of the dgte=sented and the consolidated result of operatibtise
Company for the periods presented.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Stern
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: December 28, 2007

This certification has been furnished solely punsua Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280@ is
not being filed as part of the 10-K as a separeeabure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynél
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8&s and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.






EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimce. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadéeg
September 30, 2007 as filed with the SecuritiesExahange Commission (the “Report”), I, Mitchelll@gm, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémil8 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant teocBex@6 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the consoliiate
financial condition of the Company as of the dgtesented and the consolidated result of operatibtie
Company for the periods presented.

/sl Mitchell Cohen

Mitchell Cohen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Dated: December 28, 2007

This certification has been furnished solely punsua Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280@ is
not being filed as part of the 10-K as a separeeabure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynél
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8&s and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.



